
A G E N D A  
 

AGENDA – ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD – TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 2024 – PAGE 1 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD 
 

TUESDAY,  SEPTEMBER 17 ,  2024 ,  8 :30  AM 
 

CITY OF ORANGE COUNCIL CHAMBERS  
300 East Chapman Avenue 
Orange, California 92866 

 
 

HON. BRIAN PROBOLSKY 
Chairman 

 
 HON. NICHOLAS DUNLAP CHARLES BARFIELD  
 Vice Chairman Board Member 
 

KRISTEN CAMUGLIA LOUIS MCCLURE 
 Board Member Board Member 
 
 DEAN WEST, CPA HON. PHILLIP E. YARBROUGH 
 Board Member Board Member 
 
 
Staff Counsel Clerk of the Board 
Hon. Andrew N. Hamilton, CPA, Auditor-Controller Patrick K. Bobko Kathy Tavoularis 
Kathy Tavoularis 
Chris Nguyen 
   
 
The Orange Countywide Oversight Board welcomes you to this meeting.  This agenda contains a brief general 
description of each item to be considered.  The Board encourages your participation.  If you wish to speak on an item 
contained in the agenda, please complete a Speaker Form identifying the item(s) and deposit it in the Speaker Form 
Return box located next to the Clerk.  If you wish to speak on a matter which does not appear on the agenda, you 
may do so during the Public Comment period at the close of the meeting. Except as otherwise provided by law, no 
action shall be taken on any item not appearing in the agenda.  Speaker Forms are located next to the Speaker Form 
Return box.  When addressing the Board, please state your name for the record prior to providing your comments. 
 
**In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodation for this meeting should 
notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the meeting at (714) 834-2458** 
 
 

All supporting documentation is available for public review online at https://ocauditor.gov/ob/ or in person in 
the office of the Auditor-Controller located at 1770 North Broadway, Santa Ana, California 92706  

during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday  



A G E N D A  
 

AGENDA – ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD – TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 17, 2024 – PAGE 2 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD 

 
8 : 3 0  A . M .  

 
1. Call to Order 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Approval of the Minutes from July 23, 2024, Regular Meeting 

 
4. Election of Board Officers 

a. Chairman 
b. Vice Chairman 
 

5. Adoption of the 2025 Meeting Schedule 
 

6. Adopt Resolution to Formally Dissolve the Costa Mesa Redevelopment Agency  
 

7. Adopt Resolution to Formally Dissolve the Irvine Redevelopment Agency  
 

8. Adopt Resolutions Regarding Requests by Successor Agencies for Amendments to FY 2024-25 Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) 

a. Anaheim 
 

9. Adopt Resolution Regarding License/Right-of-Entry Agreement  
a. Anaheim 

 
10. Contract for Legal Services  
 
 
COMMENTS & ADJOURNMENT: 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
At this time members of the public may address the Board on any matter not on the agenda but within the 
jurisdiction of the Board.  The Board may limit the length of time each individual may have to address the Board.  
 
STAFF COMMENTS: 
 
BOARD COMMENTS: 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

CS-1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – Pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54956.9(d)(1): 
Name of Case: Salvador C. Martinez LLC v. GM Properties, Inc., et al. (Case No. 30 2024-01400494-CU-
OR-CJC) 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
NEXT MEETING: 
 
Regular Meeting  January 2025, 8:30 AM 



MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD 
 

July 23, 2024, 8:30 AM 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The regular meeting of the Orange Countywide Oversight Board was called to order 
at 8:31 AM on July 23, 2024, by Chairman Brian Probolsky, presiding officer. 
 

Present:  5 Chairman:  Brian Probolsky 
Vice Chairman: Nicholas Dunlap 
Board Member:  Louis McClure 
Board Member:  Dean West 
Board Member:  Phillip E. Yarbrough 

 
Absent:  2 Board Member: Charles Barfield 

Board Member: Kristen Camuglia 
 
 
Also present: Kathy Tavoularis, Staff and Clerk of the Board; Patrick “Kit” Bobko, 
Legal Counsel; Chris Nguyen, Consultant; Cameron Wessel, Consultant. 
 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
 
Vice Chairman Dunlap led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 
 

3. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES FROM APRIL 16, 2024, REGULAR MEETING 
 

Board Member Yarbrough moved, and Vice Chairman Dunlap seconded, to approve the 
minutes from the April 16, 2024, Regular Board meeting. 
 
 YES – Probolsky, Dunlap, McClure, West, Yarbrough 
 NO – None 
 ABSENT – Barfield, Camuglia 
  
 

4. ADOPT RESOLUTION TO FORMALLY DISSOLVE COUNTY OF ORANGE 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY  
 
Chris Nguyen congratulated the County of Orange on finalizing their dissolution process. 
The County will be the third successor agency to dissolve in Orange County. He noted 
the extraordinary effort that the County had to go through in pursuing state legislation to 



enable their dissolution due to a unique enforceable obligation and thanked the County of 
Orange for their efforts in sponsoring AB 1270 by Assemblywoman Diane Dixon, which 
helped the County of Orange clear their pathway to dissolution. 
 
Board Member Yarbrough moved, and Vice Chairman Dunlap seconded, to approve the 
dissolution of the County of Orange Successor Agency. 
 

YES – Probolsky, Dunlap, McClure, West, Yarbrough 
 NO – None 
 ABSENT – Barfield, Camuglia 
 
 

5. ADOPT RESOLUTIONS REGARDING REQUESTS BY THE COSTA MESA AND 
IRVINE SUCCESSOR AGENCIES TO DISSOLVE 

 
Board Member Yarbrough moved, and Board Member West seconded, to approve the 
requests to dissolve the Costa Mesa and Irvine Successor Agencies. 

 
YES – Probolsky, Dunlap, McClure, West, Yarbrough 

 NO – None 
 ABSENT – Barfield, Camuglia 
 
 

6. APPROVE CONTRACT FOR LEGAL SERVICES  
 
Board Member Yarbrough moved, and Vice Chairman Dunlap seconded, a contract with 
Aleshire & Wynder LLP through December 31, 2028. 
 
Chairman Probolsky, Board Member Phil Yarbrough, and Board Member West thanked 
Legal Counsel Bobko for his service with the Orange Countywide Oversight Board since 
January 2019. 

 
YES – Probolsky, Dunlap, McClure, West, Yarbrough 

 NO – None 
 ABSENT – Barfield, Camuglia 
 
 

7. APPROVE CONTRACT AMENDMENT FOR DYNAMIC STRATEGIES 
 

Board Member West moved, and Board Member Yarbrough seconded, to approve an 
amendment to the Dynamic Strategies contract authorizing reimbursements that match 
the most current Oversight Board Policies and Procedures, adopted April 18, 2024. 
 

YES – Probolsky, Dunlap, McClure, West, Yarbrough 
 NO – None 
 ABSENT – Barfield, Camuglia 



COMMENTS & ADJOURNMENT: 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
 
None. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS: 
 
Clerk Tavoularis thanked the County of Orange Successor Agency for their work for their 
approved final dissolution today. With Costa Mesa and Irvine expected to be on the September 
17, 2024, agenda for final dissolution, the Board will end the year with a total of five dissolved 
Successor Agencies out of twenty-five that have existed in Orange County.  
 
BOARD COMMENTS: 
 
None. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
 The Board adjourned to Closed Session at 8:45 AM. 
 

CS-1.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION – Pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1): 
Name of Case: Salvador C. Martinez LLC v. GM Properties, Inc., et al. (Case No. 
30-2024-01400494-CU-OR-CJC) 

 
The Board reconvened from Closed Session at 9:10 AM. 
 
There was no reportable action from Closed Session. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Chairman Probolsky adjourned the meeting at 9:11 AM. 
 
 
 
_________________________ 
BRIAN PROBOLSKY 
CHAIRMAN OF THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD 
 
 
 
__________________________      ____________ 
KATHY TAVOULARIS       DATE 
CLERK OF THE BOARD 



Orange Countywide Oversight Board 
 
Date: 9/17/2024 Agenda Item No. 4 
 
From: Staff of the Oversight Board 
 
Subject: Election of Board Officers 
 
Recommended Action: 
Approve resolution electing Board Officers. 
 
 
This resolution will elect the Board officers, namely the Chairman and Vice Chairman, each for a term of 
one year. 
 
At the Orange Countywide Oversight Board’s first-ever meeting on August 7, 2018, and later at the 
September 26, 2019, September 22, 2020, September 21, 2021, September 20, 2022, and September 19, 
2023, meetings, the Board elected Brian Probolsky, a Director of the Moulton Niguel Water District and 
the appointee of the Independent Special District Selection Committee, as Chairman for a term of one 
year. 
 
At the January 16, 2024, the Board elected the Honorable Nick Dunlap, the Mayor of Fullerton and the 
appointee of the City Selection Committee, as Vice Chairman to complete the unexpired term of the 
Honorable Steve Jones, the Mayor of Garden Grove, who had been re-elected on September 19, 2023, to 
a term of one year. 



RESOLUTION NO. ??-??? 
 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD 
ELECTING ITS CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN 

 
 

WHEREAS, California Health and Safety Code Section 34179(e) requires all action 

items of the Orange County Countywide Oversight Board be accomplished by resolution; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with California Health and Safety Code Section 34179(j), the 

twenty-five oversight boards in place in Orange County consolidated into one Orange 

Countywide Oversight Board, effective July 1, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, the election of a Chairman and Vice Chairman will further the Board’s 

ability to conduct its work; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE 

OVERSIGHT BOARD hereby elects ___________ to serve as Chairman and ________ to serve 

as Vice Chairman for a term of one year. 



Orange Countywide Oversight Board 
 
Date: 9/17/2024 Agenda Item No. 5 
 
From: Staff of the Oversight Board 
 
Subject: 2025 Meeting Schedule 
 
Recommended Action: 
Approve resolution adopting 2025 meeting schedule 
 
 
The attached resolution would adopt a 2025 meeting schedule consisting of: 

• Tuesday, January 21, 2025 
• Tuesday, January 28, 2025 
• Tuesday, April 29, 2025 
• Tuesday, July 29, 2025 
• Tuesday, September 30, 2025 

 
The two proposed January meeting dates are due to the annual ROPS of agencies coming before the 
Countywide Oversight Board as well as the varying schedules of Successor Agency governing boards, 
who must act before the February 1, 2025, submission deadline to the State Department of Finance (DOF) 
for annual ROPS for FY 24-25, which is set by Health and Safety Code Section 34177(o)(1).   
 
Health and Safety Code Section 34177(o)(1)(E) sets October 1, 2025, as the submission deadline to the 
State Department of Finance for amended ROPS for FY 25-26.  With most Successor Agencies getting 
their governing board’s approval for amended ROPS in the first half of September, September 2, 9, and 
16 would be too early for the Oversight Board to meet while September 23 falls during Rosh Hashanah. 
 
The attached resolution would direct staff to schedule the 2025 meetings.  
 
Conflicts with Other Government Bodies and Associations 

• The Orange County Board of Supervisors has not yet adopted its 2025 meeting schedule, though 
they typically meet on the second and fourth Tuesday of each month.  The proposed January 28 
meeting date conflicts with the likely meeting date of the Board of Supervisors, but the January 
21, April 29, July 29, and September 30 meeting dates are not expected to conflict with that 
Board’s meetings. 

• The Orange County Board of Education holds its regular meetings on Wednesdays. 
• Staff is not aware of any City Council, College District, or School District in Orange County that 

holds its regular meetings in the morning. 
• There is no known conflict with the League of California Cities, as its 2025 New Mayors and 

Council Members Academy is scheduled for January 22-24 in Sacramento and January 29-31 in 
Garden Grove, and its 2025 City Leaders Summit is scheduled for April 23-25.  Its 2025 Annual 
Conference dates have not been announced yet, but in 2024, it is scheduled for October 16-18. 

 
Holiday Conflicts 

• The proposed January 21 meeting date is the day after Martin Luther King, Jr. Day. 
• The proposed January 28 meeting date is the day before the Lunar New Year. 
• The proposed April 29 and July 29 meeting dates do not conflict with any holiday known to staff. 
• The proposed September 30 meeting date falls after Rosh Hashanah (September 22-24) and 

before Yom Kippur (October 1-2). 



RESOLUTION NO. 24-____ 
 
 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD 
ADOPTING THE 2025 MEETING SCHEDULE 

 
 

WHEREAS, California Health and Safety Code Section 34179(e) requires all action 

items of the Orange County Countywide Oversight Board be accomplished by resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the Orange Countywide Oversight Board has not yet set its 2025 regular 

meeting schedule; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE 

OVERSIGHT BOARD DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Orange Countywide Oversight Board shall hold its regular meetings in 

2025 on January 21, January 28, April 29, July 29, and September 30; and  

Section 2. The Orange Countywide Oversight Board shall hold its regular meetings at 

8:30 a.m.; and 

Section 3. Nothing in this resolution will prevent the cancellation of any regular meeting 

through normal meeting cancellation procedures. 



Orange Countywide Oversight Board 
 

Agenda Item No. 6 

Date: September 17, 2024 

From: Successor Agency to the Costa Mesa Redevelopment Agency 

Subject: Resolution of the Countywide Oversight Board in the Matter of the Formal 
Dissolution of the Successor Agency to the Costa Mesa Redevelopment Agency 
and Taking Related Actions 

Recommended Action: 

Adopt resolution to formally dissolve the Successor Agency to the Costa Mesa Redevelopment 
Agency (the “Successor Agency”) and taking related actions. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

The Successor Agency’s Board of Directors (the “SA Board”) adopted its Resolution No. SA 24-
08, on February 20, 2024, to request the Countywide Oversight Board’s approval of the formal 
dissolution of the Successor Agency. They submitted this information to the Countywide 
Oversight Board on June 27, 2024, and the Countywide Oversight Board adopted Resolution No. 
24-022, on July 23, 2024, approving the request.  The California State of Department of Finance 
(the “DOF”) issued its letter, dated August 23, 2024 (the “DOF Approval”), approving the 
Countywide Oversight Board resolution and the request. 

Pursuant to HSC Section 34187(e), the Successor Agency must take the following steps within 
100 days of the DOF’s approval: 

(1)  dispose of all remaining assets and transfer the any proceeds to the County Auditor-
Controller for distribution to the affected taxing entities. 

(2)  send notification (the “Notification”) to the Countywide Oversight Board that it has 
complied with such disposition and transfer of proceeds. 

On August 23, 2024, the Department of Finance notified the Successor Agency that its request to 
formally dissolve has been approved. On September 11, 2024, the Successor Agency transmitted 
a letter to serve as the Notification to the Countywide Oversight Board for the purposes of HSC 
Section 34187(e) 

Per HSC Section 34187(f), upon receipt of the Notification, the Countywide Oversight Board must 
verify that, with respect to the Successor Agency, all obligations have been retired or paid off, all 
outstanding litigation has been resolved, and all remaining assets have been disposed of with any 
proceeds remitted to the County Auditor-Controller for distribution to the affected taxing entities.  
Within 14 days of verification, the Countywide Oversight Board must adopt a final resolution to 
dissolve the Successor Agency, which will become effective immediately. 

The SA Final Resolution recites the SA Board’s findings and determinations that: (i) all of the 
Successor Agency’s obligations have been retired or paid off, (ii) there is no outstanding litigation 



Orange Countywide Oversight Board 
 

to which the Successor Agency is a party, and (iii) all of the Successor Agency’s assets have been 
disposed of with any proceeds thereof will remit to the County Auditor-Controller. 

It is recommended that the Countywide Oversight Board adopt the attached final resolution to 
formally dissolve the Successor Agency. 

Impact on Taxing Entities:   

In conjunction with the retirement and pay-off of all the Successor Agency’s enforceable 
obligation and the dissolution of the Successor Agency, all statutory and contractual pass-through 
payments relating to the project areas of the former Redevelopment Agency of the City of Costa 
Mesa will cease and no further property tax will be allocated to the Successor Agency’s 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund.   

Staff Contact(s):   

Carol Molina, City of costa Mesa / Finance Director 

Ash Hassan, City of Costa Mesa / Finance Officer- Accounting 

Attachments:   

Attachment 1 -- Proposed Oversight Board Resolution (with Successor Agency Board 
Resolution No. SA 24-08, as Exhibit A). 



12805-0001\2531148v2.doc 

RESOLUTION OF THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD  

RESOLUTION NO. 24-027 
 

IN THE MATTER OF THE FORMAL DISSOLUTION OF THE 
SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE COSTA MESA REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY AND TAKING RELATED ACTIONS 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to AB X1 26 (enacted in June 2011) and the California Supreme 

Court’s decision in California Redevelopment Association, et al. v. Costa Mesa (the “Former 
Agency”) was dissolved as of February 1, 2012, and the Successor Agency to the Costa Mesa 
Redevelopment Agency (the “Successor Agency”) was constituted; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 34179(j) of the California Health and Safety Code 
(“HSC”), commencing on and after July 1, 2018, the Orange Countywide Oversight Board (the 
“Countywide Oversight Board”) has jurisdiction over the Successor Agency; and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency is tasked with winding down the Former Agency’s 
affairs; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to HSC Section 34187(b), the Successor Agency shall  submit to 
the Countywide Oversight Board a request, with a copy to the Orange County Auditor-Controller 
(the “County Auditor-Controller”) to formally dissolve the Successor Agency within 30 days of 
meeting the following criteria (collectively, the “Dissolution Criteria”): 

(i) all enforceable obligations have been retired or paid off, 

(ii) all real property has been disposed of pursuant to HSC Section 34181 or 
34191.4, and  

(iii) all outstanding litigation has been resolved.; and 

WHEREAS, on June 27, 2024, the Countywide Oversight Board received a copy of 
Resolution No. SA 24-08, adopted on February 20,2024 (the “SA Request Resolution”), by the 
Board of Directors (the “SA Board”) of the Successor Agency, which is set forth in Exhibit A 
attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, by adoption of SA Resolution, the SA Board found and determined that the 
Successor Agency have met the Dissolution Criteria and requested the Countywide Oversight 
Board to approve and direct the Successor Agency’s formal dissolution; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to HSC Section 34187(b), the Countywide Oversight Board shall 
approve the Successor Agency’s dissolution request within 30 days and, further, shall submit such 
request to the California State Department of Finance (the “DOF”); and 



 
12805-0001\2531148v2.doc 

WHEREAS, the Countywide Oversight Board adopted Resolution No. 24-022, on July 
23, 2024 (the “OB Approving Resolution”), approving the Successor Agency’s request to 
formally dissolve; and 

WHEREAS, the DOF issued its letter, dated August 23, 2024 (the “DOF Approval”), 
approving the OB Approval Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to HSC Section 34187(e), within 100 days of the issuance of the 
DOF’s Approval, the Successor Agency shall dispose of all remaining assets as directed by the 
Countywide Oversight Board and the proceeds of such disposition shall be transferred to the 
County Auditor-Controller (the “Final Transfer”); and 

WHEREAS, as memorialized in the SA Request Resolution, the Successor Agency’s 
remaining assets consisted only of the Released Bond Funds (as defined in the SA Request 
Resolution); and 

WHEREAS, no remaining funds to the County Auditor-Controller; and 

WHEREAS, the SA sent a letter (the “SA Notification”) on September 11, 2024, to notify 
the Countywide Oversight Board of the competition of the Final Transfer, and a copy of the SA 
Notification is set forth in Exhibit B; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to HSC Section 34187(f), upon receipt of the SA Notification, the 
Countywide Oversight Board shall: (i) make a verification (the “Verification”) all of the Successor 
Agency’s obligations have been retired or paid off, all outstanding litigation has been resolved, 
and all remaining assets have been disposed of with any proceeds remitted to the County Auditor-
Controller for distribution to the affected taxing entities; and (ii) within 14 days of Verification, 
adopt a final resolution of dissolution for the Successor Agency, which shall be effective 
immediately; and 

WHEREAS, the Countywide Oversight Board has completed the Verification; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE 
OVERSIGHT BOARD: 

SECTION 1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into 
the Resolution by this reference. 

SECTION 2. The Countywide Oversight Board hereby finds, determines and verifies 
that, with respect to the Successor Agency, all of the Successor Agency’s obligations have been 
retired or paid off, all outstanding litigation has been resolved, and all remaining assets have been 
disposed of with any proceeds remitted to the County Auditor-Controller for distribution to the 
affected taxing entities.  

SECTION 3. The Successor Agency is hereby dissolved. 



 
12805-0001\2531148v2.doc 

SECTION 4. The Clerk of the Countywide Oversight Board is hereby directed to send 
copies of this Resolution to the City of Costa Mesa, the County Auditor-Controller, the State 
Controller’s Office, and the DOF by electronic means and in a manner of each entity’s choosing. 

SECTION 5. The approval of this Resolution does not commit the Countywide Oversight 
Board to any action that may have a significant effect on the environment. As a result, such action 
does not constitute a project subject to the requirements of the California Environmental Quality 
Act (California Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.).   

SECTION 6. If any provision of this Resolution or the application of any such provision 
to any person or circumstance is held valid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of this Resolution that can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, 
and to this end the provisions of this Resolution are severable.  The Countywide Oversight Board 
declares that the Countywide Oversight Board would have adopted this Resolution irrespective of 
the invalidity of any particular portion of this Resolution. 

SECTION 7. Pursuant to HSC Section 34187(f), this Resolution shall become effective 
immediately upon adoption. 

SECTION 8. The Clerk of the Countywide Oversight Board shall certify to the adoption 
of this Resolution. 

The foregoing was passed and adopted by the following vote of the Orange Countywide 
Oversight Board on the 17th day of September 2024. 

 
 
 



12805-0001\2531148v2.doc 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SA Request Resolution 
 
 

Resolution No. SA 24-08 
 

adopted by the Board of Directors of the Costa Mesa Successor Agency 
 

(attached) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12805-0001\2531148v2.doc 

EXHIBIT B 
 

SA Notification 
 
 

Notification sent by the Costa Mesa Successor Agency 
 

(attached) 











Transmitted via e-mail 

August 23, 2024 

Andrea Pham, Finance Manager 
City of Costa Mesa 
77 Fair Drive 
Costa Mesa, CA 92626  

Approval of Redevelopment Successor Agency Dissolution 

The City of Costa Mesa Successor Agency (Agency) notified the California Department 
of Finance (Finance) of its July 23, 2024 Oversight Board (OB) resolution on July 29, 2024, 
requesting to dissolve the Agency. Pursuant to Health and Safety  
Code (HSC) section 34187 (d), Finance has completed its review of the OB action. 

Based on our review and application of the law, OB Resolution 24-022 approving the 
dissolution of the Agency, is approved. It is our understanding that the Agency has met 
the conditions pursuant to HSC section 34187 (b) as follows: 

• All enforceable obligations identified in the Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule have been retired or paid off.

• All real property has been disposed pursuant to HSC section 34181 or 34191.4.
• All outstanding litigation has been resolved.

Pursuant to HSC section 34187 (e), within 100 days upon receipt of this letter, the Agency 
shall dispose of any remaining assets as directed by the OB and proceeds from asset 
dispositions are to be transferred to the County-Auditor Controller. In addition, the 
Agency is to notify the OB of its compliance related to any remaining assets. Upon 
notification of the Agency’s compliance, and within 14 days of verification, the OB shall 
submit to Finance a final resolution of the Agency’s dissolution which shall be effective 
immediately. 

Please direct inquiries to RedevelopmentAdministration@dof.ca.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Cheryl L. McCormick, CPA 
Chief, Office of State Audits and Evaluations 

cc: Carol Molina, Finance Director, City of Irvine 
Samantha Nguyen, Fiscal Analyst, Property Tax Unit, Orange County 
Kathy Tavoularis, Countywide Oversight Board Representative

mailto:RedevelopmentAdministration@dof.ca.gov


 
 
 
 
 
 
 

August 16, 2024 
 
 
 
VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL:  
KATHY.TAVOULARIS@AC.OCGOV.COM 
 
Kathy Tavoularis 
Orange County Oversight Board Manager  
1770 N. Broadway 
Santa Ana, California 92706 
 

Re:  City of Costa Mesa Successor Agency ROPS 
 
Dear Ms. Tavoularis,  
 

I serve as City Attorney for the City of Costa Mesa, and counsel to the Successor 
Agency to the Costa Mesa Redevelopment Agency (“Successor Agency”). Pursuant to 
your request to Ash Hassan, this letter will confirm that, as of this date, our office is not 
aware of any pending litigation involving the Successor Agency. 

 
Very truly yours, 
 
 
 
Kimberly Hall Barlow 

 
 
 
 
 
 
KHB:wag 
Cc:  Ash Hassan 
 
 
 
 

mailto:KATHY.TAVOULARIS@AC.OCGOV.COM




Orange Countywide Oversight Board 
 

Agenda Item No. 7 
 

Date: September 17, 2024 

From: Successor Agency to the Dissolved Irvine Redevelopment Agency 

Subject: Resolution of the Orange Countywide Oversight Board in the Matter of the 
Formal Dissolution of the Successor Agency to the Dissolved Irvine 
Redevelopment Agency and Taking Related Actions 

Recommended Action: 

Adopt resolution to formally dissolve the Successor Agency to the Dissolved Irvine 
Redevelopment Agency (the “Successor Agency”) and taking related actions. 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

The Successor Agency’s Board of Directors (the “SA Board”) adopted its Resolution No. 24-06 
on July 9, 2024, to request the Countywide Oversight Board to approve the formal dissolution of 
the Successor Agency.  The Countywide Oversight Board adopted Resolution No. 24-023 on July 
23, 2024, approving the request. The California State of Department of Finance (the “DOF”) issued 
its letter, dated August 22, 2024 (the “DOF Approval”), approving the Countywide Oversight 
Board resolution and the request. 

Pursuant to HSC Section 34187(e), the Successor Agency must take the following steps within 
100 days of the DOF’s approval: 
 

(1) dispose of all remaining assets and transfer the any proceeds to the County Auditor- 
Controller for distribution to the affected taxing entities. 
 
(2) send notification (the “Notification”) the Countywide Oversight Board that it has 
complied with such disposition and transfer of proceeds. 

The Countywide Oversight Board has received a copy of Resolution No. 24-09, adopted by 
the SA Board on September 10, 2024 (the “SA Final Resolution”). The SA Final Resolution 
serves as the Notification to the Countywide Oversight Board for the purposes of HSC Section 
34187(e).  
 
Per HSC Section 34187(f), upon receipt of the Notification, the Countywide Oversight Board 
must verify that, with respect to the Successor Agency, all obligations have been retired or paid 
off, all outstanding litigation has been resolved, and all remaining assets have been disposed of 
with any proceeds remitted to the County Auditor-Controller for distribution to the affected 
taxing entities.  Within 14 days of verification, the Countywide Oversight Board must adopt a 
final resolution to dissolve the Successor Agency, which will become effective immediately. 
 
Attached to the SA Final Resolution is the unaudited final accounting of the Successor Agency 
funds, as of September 1, 2024, showing that the Successor Agency has no outstanding assets or 
obligations. The SA Final Resolution recites the SA Board’s findings and determinations that: (i) 



Orange Countywide Oversight Board 
 

all of the Successor Agency’s obligations have been retired or paid off, (ii) there is no 
outstanding litigation to which the Successor Agency is a party, and (iii) all of the Successor 
Agency’s assets have been disposed of with any proceeds thereof remitted to the County 
Auditor-Controller. 
 
It is recommended that the Countywide Oversight Board adopt the attached final resolution to 
formally dissolve the Successor Agency. 
 
Impact on Taxing Entities:   

In conjunction with the retirement and pay-off of all of the Successor Agency’s enforceable 
obligations and the dissolution of the Successor Agency, all statutory and contractual pass-through 
payments relating to the project areas of the former Redevelopment Agency of the City of Irvine 
will cease and no further property tax will be allocated to the Successor Agency’s Redevelopment 
Property Tax Trust Fund.   

Staff Contact(s):   

Janice Reyes, City of Irvine Manager of Fiscal Services 

Attachments:   

Attachment 1 -- Proposed Oversight Board Resolution (with Successor Agency Board 
Resolution No. 24-09, as Exhibit A). 



RESOLUTION OF THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD  

RESOLUTION NO. 24-028 
 

IN THE MATTER OF THE FORMAL DISSOLUTION OF THE SUCCESSOR 
AGENCY TO THE DISSOLVED IRVINE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY AND 
TAKING RELATED ACTIONS 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to AB X1 26 (enacted in June 2011) and the California Supreme 

Court’s decision in California Redevelopment Association, et al. v. Ana Matosantos, et al., 53 Cal. 
4th 231 (2011), the Redevelopment Agency of the City of Irvine (the “Former Agency”) was 
dissolved as of February 1, 2012, and the Successor Agency to the Dissolved Irvine 
Redevelopment Agency (the “Successor Agency”) was constituted; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 34179(j) of the California Health and Safety Code 
(“HSC”), commencing on and after July 1, 2018, the Orange Countywide Oversight Board (the 
“Countywide Oversight Board”) has jurisdiction over the Successor Agency; and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency is tasked with winding down the Former Agency’s 
affairs; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to HSC Section 34187(b), the Successor Agency shall submit to the 
Countywide Oversight Board a request, with a copy to the Orange County Auditor-Controller (the 
“County Auditor-Controller”), to formally dissolve the Successor Agency within 30 days of 
meeting the following criteria (collectively, the “Dissolution Criteria”): 

(i) all enforceable obligations have been retired or paid off, 

(ii) all real property has been disposed of pursuant to HSC Section 34181 or 
34191.4, and  

(iii) all outstanding litigation has been resolved.; and 

WHEREAS, the Countywide Oversight Board received a copy of Resolution No. SA 24-
06 adopted on July 9, 2024 (the “SA Request Resolution”), by the Board of Directors (the “SA 
Board”) of the Successor Agency, which is set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto; and 

WHEREAS, by adoption of SA Resolution, the SA Board found and determined that the 
Successor Agency have met the Dissolution Criteria and requested the Countywide Oversight 
Board to approve and direct the Successor Agency’s formal dissolution; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to HSC Section 34187(b), the Countywide Oversight Board shall 
approve the Successor Agency’s dissolution request within 30 days and, further, shall submit 
such request to the California State Department of Finance (the “DOF”); and 



 

WHEREAS, the Countywide Oversight Board adopted Resolution No. 24-023 on July 23, 
2024 (the “OB Approving Resolution”), approving the Successor Agency’s request to formally 
dissolve; and 

WHEREAS, the DOF issued its letter, dated August 22, 2024 (the “DOF Approval”), 
approving the OB Approval Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to HSC Section 34187(e), within 100 days of the issuance of the 
DOF’s Approval, the Successor Agency shall dispose of all remaining assets as directed by the 
Countywide Oversight Board and the proceeds of such disposition shall be transferred to the 
County Auditor-Controller (the “Final Transfer”); and 

WHEREAS, the SA Board adopted Resolution No. 24-09 on September 10, 2024, (the 
“SA Notification Resolution”), to notify the Countywide Oversight Board of the completion of the 
Final Transfer, and a copy of the SA Notification Resolution is set forth in Exhibit A; 

WHEREAS, pursuant to HSC Section 34187(f), upon receipt of the SA Notification 
Resolution, the Countywide Oversight Board shall: (i) make a verification (the “Verification”) all 
of the Successor Agency’s obligations have been retired or paid off, all outstanding litigation has 
been resolved, and all remaining assets have been disposed of with any proceeds remitted to the 
County Auditor-Controller for distribution to the affected taxing entities; and (ii) within 14 days 
of Verification, adopt a final resolution of dissolution for the Successor Agency, which shall be 
effective immediately; and 

WHEREAS, the Countywide Oversight Board has completed the Verification; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE 
OVERSIGHT BOARD: 

SECTION 1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into 
the Resolution by this reference. 

SECTION 2. The Countywide Oversight Board hereby finds, determines and verifies 
that, with respect to the Successor Agency, all of the Successor Agency’s obligations have been 
retired or paid off, all outstanding litigation has been resolved, and all remaining assets have 
been disposed of with any proceeds remitted to the County Auditor-Controller for distribution to 
the affected taxing entities. 

SECTION 3. The Successor Agency is hereby dissolved. 

SECTION 4. The Clerk of the Countywide Oversight Board is hereby directed to send 
copies of this Resolution to the City of Irvine, the County Auditor-Controller, the State 
Controller’s Office, and the DOF by electronic means and in a manner of each entity’s choosing.  
 

SECTION 5. The approval of this Resolution does not commit the Countywide 
Oversight Board to any action that may have a significant effect on the environment. As a result, 



 

such action does not constitute a project subject to the requirements of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (California Public Resources Code Section 21000 et seq.). 

 
SECTION 6. If any provision of this Resolution or the application of any such provision 

to any person or circumstance is held valid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or 
applications of this Resolution that can be given effect without the invalid provision or 
application, and to this end the provisions of this Resolution are severable. The Countywide 
Oversight Board declares that the Countywide Oversight Board would have adopted this 
Resolution irrespective of the invalidity of any particular portion of this Resolution. 

 
SECTION 7. Pursuant to HSC Section 34187(f), this Resolution shall become effective 

immediately upon adoption. 
 
SECTION 8. The Clerk of the Countywide Oversight Board shall certify to the adoption 

of this Resolution. 
 

The foregoing was passed and adopted by the following vote of the Orange Countywide 
Oversight Board on the 17th day of September, 2024. 
  



 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 

Resolution No. SA 24-09 
 

adopted by the Board of Directors of the Successor Agency to the Dissolved Irvine 
Redevelopment Agency 

 
(Attached) 

 
 

 
 

























Transmitted via e-mail 

August 22, 2024 

Janice Reyes, Manager of Fiscal Services 
City of Irvine 
1 Civic Center Plaza 
Irvine, CA 92623 

Approval of Redevelopment Successor Agency Dissolution 

The City of Irvine Successor Agency (Agency) notified the California Department of 
Finance (Finance) of its July 23, 2024 Oversight Board (OB) resolution requesting to 
dissolve the Agency. Pursuant to Health and Safety Code (HSC) section 34187 (d), 
Finance has completed its review of the OB action. 

Based on our review and application of the law, OB Resolution 24-023 approving the 
dissolution of the Agency, is approved. It is our understanding that the Agency has met 
the conditions pursuant to HSC section 34187 (b) as follows: 

• All enforceable obligations identified in the Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule have been retired or paid off.

• All real property has been disposed pursuant to HSC section 34181 or 34191.4.
• All outstanding litigation has been resolved.

Pursuant to HSC section 34187 (e), within 100 days upon receipt of this letter, the Agency 
shall dispose of any remaining assets as directed by the OB and proceeds from asset 
dispositions are to be transferred to the County-Auditor Controller. In addition, the 
Agency is to notify the OB of its compliance related to any remaining assets. Upon 
notification of Agency’s compliance, and within 14 days of verification, the OB shall 
submit to Finance a final resolution of the Agency’s dissolution which shall be effective 
immediately. 

This is our determination with respect to the OB action taken. 

Please direct inquiries to RedevelopmentAdministration@dof.ca.gov. 

Sincerely, 

Cheryl L. McCormick, CPA 
Chief, Office of State Audits and Evaluations 

cc: Joshua Brooks, Deputy Director of Administrative Services, City of Irvine 
Samantha Nguyen, Fiscal Analyst, Property Tax Unit, Orange County 
Kathy Tavoularis, Countywide Oversight Board Representative

mailto:RedevelopmentAdministration@dof.ca.gov


 

  

Jeffrey T. Melching 

Direct Dial: (714) 641-3422 

E-mail: jmelching@rutan.com 

 

June 18, 2024 

 
 

Ru t an  &  Tu ck e r ,  LL P  |  18 57 5  Ja mb or ee  Road ,  9 t h  F l oo r  
I r v i ne ,  CA  92 61 2  |  71 4 - 64 1 - 51 00  |  Fa x  71 4 - 546 -90 35  
Or an ge  Coun ty  |  Pa lo  A l to  |  San  F ra nc is co  |  Sc o t t s da le  |  www. ru ta n . co m  

2465/048170-0978 

20732477.1 a06/18/24 

 

VIA E-MAIL AND 

FIRST CLASS MAIL 

Ms. Kathy Tavoularis 

Manager 

Orange Countywide Oversight Board 

1770 N. Broadway 

Santa Ana, CA 92706 

kathy.tavoularis@ac.ocgov.com 

 

Re: Request for Dissolution of Successor Agency to the Dissolved Irvine 

Redevelopment Agency 

Dear Ms. Tavoularis: 

Pursuant to California Health and Safety Code section 34187(b), on behalf of the Successor 

Agency to the Dissolved Irvine Redevelopment Agency (the “Successor Agency”), I hereby 

submit this request to the Orange Countywide Oversight Board (“Oversight Board”) to formally 

dissolve the Successor Agency.  As required by Section 34187(b), the Successor Agency’s 

(a) enforceable obligations have been retired or paid off, (b) real property has been disposed, and 

(c) all outstanding litigation has been resolved.  Specifically, the final enforceable obligation of 

the Successor Agency, related to the payment of the future cost to reconstruct, repair, or replace a 

reinforced concrete box located in a portion of Bee Canyon Channel at a cost of up to six hundred 

and fifty thousand dollars ($650,000)1 was discharged pursuant to the City of Irvine’s payment of 

$650,000 to the County of Orange on June 11, 2024.   

Therefore, the Successor Agency hereby requests that the Oversight Board take action 

within 30 days to approve the Successor Agency’s request to dissolve and, after such approval, 

submit the request to the Department of Finance. 

/ / / 

/ / / 

/ / / 

 
1 Please see that certain Implementation Agreement No. 2 Between City of Irvine, Irvine 

Redevelopment Agency, and County of Orange for more information. 



 

Ms. Kathy Tavoularis 

Manager 

Orange Countywide Oversight Board 

June 18, 2024 

Page 2 

 

 

 

2465/048170-0978 

20732477.1 a06/18/24   

 

If any additional information or actions are required of the Successor Agency, please let 

me know. 

Very truly yours, 

RUTAN & TUCKER, LLP 

Jeffrey T. Melching 

Successor Agency General Counsel 

JTM:AST:mrs 

 

cc: Andrew N. Hamilton,  

Orange County Auditor-Controller (acadmin@ac.ocgov.com and info@ac.ocgov.com) 

 

 

mailto:acadmin@ac.ocgov.com
mailto:info@ac.ocgov.com






Orange Countywide Oversight Board 

          Agenda Item No. 8a

Date: 9/17/2024 

From: Successor Agency to the Anaheim Redevelopment Agency 

Subject: Resolution of the Countywide Oversight Board Approving Amendment to the Recognized 
Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) 

Recommended Action: 
Approve resolution approving amendment to FY 2024-25B ROPS for the Anaheim Successor Agency 
The Anaheim Successor Agency requests approval of the Amended Recognized Obligation Payment 
Schedule (ROPS) 24-25B for the second half of Fiscal Year 2024-25. The amendment would request 
additional RPTTF funds for ROPS Line-Item No. 66 – River Valley Redevelopment Project Area, No. 75 
– External Project Costs, and No. 151- Westgate Remediation in the aggregate amount of $4,759,465.85.

Line-Item No. 66 (River Valley Redevelopment Project Area) 
This line-item is in connection with a Successor Agency Note payable to the Savi Ranch Valley Irrigation 
Company for the purpose of effectuating the Redevelopment Plan for the River Valley Redevelopment 
Project Area. The Successor Agency is requesting an additional $59,465.85 for this line item to cover a 
shortfall based on a revision to the payment schedule. The payment schedule was revised because 
documentation used to derive the actual payment amount for the calculation was provided post approval of 
ROPS 24-25.   

Line-Item No. 75 (External Project Costs) 
This line-item is in connection with professional project related services. The Successor Agency is 
requesting an additional $200,000 to cover associated project related costs for consulting services regarding 
implementation of LRPMP property disposition, project management associated with existing property 
leases and projects of the former redevelopment agency, as well as legal services, specifically recent 
litigation costs associated with LRPMP Property #10. 

Line-Item No. 151 (Westgate Remediation) 
The Successor Agency is requesting an additional $4,500,000 for this line item to cover ongoing 
environmental remediation costs to fulfill obligations imposed by various regulatory agencies that hold 
jurisdiction over the Westgate Property landfill (“LRPMP Property #16” or “Property”) and to fulfill a State 
approved Remedial Action Plan related to operations, monitoring, and maintenance activities at the subject 
Property, as well as a Clean Closure Plan in accordance with the Requirements of Title 27 of the California 
Code of Regulations and applicable local requirements.  

The request for additional funds will support ongoing activities for the Clean Closure Plan. During the 
process, it was found that mud and waste had encroached closer to the property’s north boundary than 
anticipated. To address this, specialized removal methods, including slot cutting and direct disposal, will 
be used, along with increased sampling and backfilling. Additionally, the activities will involve 
demolishing northern perimeter walls, shoring, and excavating impacted material. In the southwest section, 
the plan includes obtaining permits, sampling, relocating improvements, and removing waste through 
borehole drilling, followed by backfilling and surface replacements 

The Successor Agency has sufficient contract authority available to complete these repairs and, if approved 
by the Countywide Oversight Board, it intends to utilize the requested additional RPTTF funds in the ROPS 
24-25B period to immediately address the associated activities, operations, monitoring and maintenance
activities at the subject Property.



Impact on Taxing Entities 

The proposed ROPS Amendment will reduce residual RPTTF to the taxing entities from the January 2025 
distribution by $4,759,465.85. 

Staff Contact(s) 

Sergio Ramirez, Economic Development Director 
sramirez@anaheim.net 

Stephen Stoewer, Senior Project Manager 
SStoewer@anaheim.net 

Attachments 

1. Resolution
2. Amended ROPS FY 24-25B
3. Tetra Tech BAS Scope of Work

mailto:sramirez@anaheim.net
mailto:SStoewer@anaheim.net


RESOLUTION OF THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD 
RESOLUTION NO. 24-029

A RESOLUTION OF THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD APPROVING 
AN AMENDED RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION PAYMENT FOR THE FY2024-25 FISCAL 

PERIOD OF JULY 1, 2024 TO JUNE 30, 2025, FOR THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE 
ANAHEIM REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY, SUBJECT TO SUBMITTAL TO, AND REVIEW 

BY, THE STATE DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE [DOF] UNDER CALIFORNIA HEALTH 
AND SAFETY CODE, DIVISION 24, PART 1.85, AND AUTHORIZING POSTING  

AND TRANSMITTAL THEREOF 

WHEREAS, the former Anaheim Redevelopment Agency (“Former Agency”) 
previously was a community redevelopment agency that was previously organized and existing 
under the California Community Redevelopment Law, Health and Safety Code Section 33000, et 
seq., and previously authorized to transact business and exercise powers of a redevelopment 
agency pursuant to action of the City Council of the City of Anaheim (“City”); and 

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill x1 26 added Parts 1.8 and 1.85 to Division 24 of the 
California Health and Safety Code, which caused the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies 
and wind down of the affairs of former agencies, including as such laws were amended by 
Assembly Bill 1484 and by other subsequent legislation (“Dissolution Law”); and 

WHEREAS, as of February 1, 2012 the Agency was dissolved pursuant to the 
Dissolution Law, and as a separate public entity, corporate and policy the Successor Agency to 
the Anaheim Redevelopment Agency (“Successor Agency”) administers the enforcement 
obligations of the Former Agency and otherwise unwinds the Former Agency’s affairs; and 

WHEREAS, prior to July 1, 2018 under the Dissolution Law, in particular Sections 
34179 and 34180, all actions of the Successor Agency were subject to the review and approval 
by a local seven-member oversight board, which oversaw and administered the Successor 
Agency’s activities during the period from dissolution until June 30, 2018; and  

WHEREAS, as of, on and after July 1, 2018, under the Dissolution Law, in particular 
Section 34179(j), in every California county there shall be only one oversight board that is 
staffed by the county auditor-controller, with certain exceptions that do not apply in the County 
of Orange; and 

WHEREAS, as of, on and after July 1, 2018, the Orange Countywide Oversight Board 
(“Oversight Board”) was established through the Orange County Auditor-Controller in 
compliance with Section 34179(j), which serves as the oversight board to the 25 successor 
agencies existing and operating in Orange County, including Successor Agency and all other 
successor agencies in Orange County; and 

WHEREAS, every oversight board, both the prior local oversight board and this newly 
established Orange Countywide Oversight Board, have fiduciary responsibilities to the holders of 
enforceable obligations and to the taxing entities that benefit from distributions of property tax 
and other revenues pursuant to Section 34188 of the Dissolution Law; and 

Page 1 of 3 



Page 2 of 3 

WHEREAS, Section 34177(m), 34177(o) and 34179 provide that each ROPS is 
submitted to, review and approved by the Successor Agency and then reviewed and approved by 
the Oversight Board final review and approval by the State Department of Finance (“DOF”); and 

WHEREAS, Section 34177(o)(1)(E) of the Dissolution Law authorizes that “[o]nce per 
period, and no later than October 1, a successor agency may submit one amendment to the 
[ROPS] approved by the department pursuant to this subdivision, if the oversight board makes a 
finding that a revision is necessary for the payment of approved enforceable obligations during 
the second one-half of the [ROPS] period, which shall be defined as January 1 to June 30, 
inclusive. A successor agency may only amend the amount requested for payment of approved 
enforceable obligations. The revised [ROPS] shall be approved by the oversight board and 
submitted to the department by electronic means in a manner of the department’s choosing. The 
department shall notify the successor agency and the county auditor-controller as to the outcome 
of the department’s review at least 15 days before the date of the property tax distribution”; and 

WHEREAS, the Successor Agency has submitted to the Orange Countywide Oversight 
Board an amendment to ROPS FY 2024-25 that would request additional RPTTF funds for 
ROPS Line-Item No. 66 – River Valley Redevelopment Project Area, No. 75 – External Project 
Costs, and No. 151- Westgate Remediation; and  

WHEREAS, the objective of this Orange Countywide Oversight Board resolution is to 
authorize, make findings, and approve the Successor Agency’s amendment of ROPS FY24-25 to 
correct and increase line items 66, 75, and 151 in the aggregate amount of $4,759,465.85 as 
reflected on the amendment to the Successor Agency’s ROPS FY 2024-25 attached as 
Attachment No. 1 to this resolution and fully incorporated herein by this reference; and  

WHEREAS, the Orange Countywide Oversight Board has reviewed and considered the 
Successor Agency’s amendment of ROPS FY24-25, and desires to make certain findings, 
including: (i) amendment is necessary to pay DOF-approved enforceable obligations on ROPS 
FY 2024-2025 during the “B” fiscal period, (ii) ROPS FY 2024-25, as amended, is approved, 
(iii) the Successor Agency or City staff are authorized to post ROPS FY 2024-25, as amended,
on the City’s website, and (iv) staff is directed to transmit ROPS FY 2024-25, as amended, to the
DOF, pursuant to the Dissolution Law;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE 
OVERSIGHT BOARD: 

SECTION 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Resolution by this 
reference, and constitute a material part of this Resolution. 

SECTION 2. The Orange Countywide Oversight Board hereby finds the revision set 
forth in amended ROPS FY 2024-2025 for funds to be distributed from the Redevelopment 
Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) for the fiscal period January 1, 2025 to June 30, 2025 is 
necessary to pay DOF-approved enforceable obligations for such ROPS FY 2024-2025B period; 
in particular, the amendment is to correct and increase the RPTTF authorized for disbursement to 
the Successor Agency and payment by the Successor Agency for line items 66,75, and 151.  



Page 3 of 3 

SECTION 3. Under the Dissolution Law, the Orange Countywide Oversight Board 
approves the ROPS FY 2024-25, as amended, (Attachment No. 1); provided however, that the 
ROPS FY 2024-2025, as amended, is approved subject to the condition that such ROPS, as 
amended, is to be submitted to and reviewed by the DOF. Further, the Executive Director of the 
Successor Agency and his authorized designees, in consultation with legal counsel, shall be 
authorized to discuss this matter with the DOF and make augmentations, modifications, additions 
or revisions as may be necessary or directed by DOF.   

SECTION 4. The Orange Countywide Oversight Board authorizes transmittal of ROPS 
FY 2024-2025, as amended, to the DOF. 

SECTION 5. The Executive Director of the Successor Agency and his authorized 
designees directed to post this Resolution, including the ROPS FY 2024-2025, as amended, on 
the City’s website. 

SECTION 6. The approval of the amendment to the ROPS through this Resolution does 
not commit the Orange Countywide Oversight Board to any action that may have a significant 
effect on the environment. As a result, such action does not constitute a project subject to the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act. 

SECTION 7. Under Section 34179(h) written notice and information about certain 
actions taken by the Orange Countywide Oversight Board shall be provided to the DOF by 
electronic means and in a manner of DOF’s choosing. The Orange Countywide Oversight 
Board’s action shall become effective five (5) business days after notice in the manner specified 
by the DOF unless the DOF requests a review. 

SECTION 8. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 



Amended Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS 24-25B) - Summary 
Filed for the January 1, 2025 through June 30, 2025 Period 

Successor Agency: Anaheim 
County: Orange 

Current Period Requested Funding for Enforceable 
Obligations (ROPS Detail) 

ROPS 24-25B 
Authorized 
Amounts 

ROPS 24-25B 
Requested 

Adjustments 

ROPS 24-25B 
Amended 

Total 
A Enforceable Obligations Funded as Follows (B+C+D) $ 151,180 $ - $ 151,180
B Bond Proceeds - - - 
C Reserve Balance - - - 
D Other Funds 151,180 - 151,180
E Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) (F+G) $ 14,095,099 $ 4,759,465 $ 18,854,564 
F RPTTF 13,842,099 4,759,465 18,601,564 
G Administrative RPTTF 253,000 - 253,000
H Current Period Enforceable Obligations (A+E) $ 14,246,279 $ 4,759,465 $ 19,005,744 

Certification of Oversight Board Chairman: 
Name Title 

Pursuant to Section 34177 (o) of the Health and Safety 
code, I hereby certify that the above is a true and 
accurate Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule for 
the above named successor agency. /s/ 

Signature Date 



Anaheim 
Amended Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS 24-25B) - ROPS Detail 

January 1, 2025 through June 30, 2025 

Item 
# Project Name Obligation Type Total Outstanding 

Obligation 

Authorized Amounts 

Total 

Requested Adjustments 

Total Notes Fund Sources Fund Sources 
Bond 

Proceeds 
Reserve 
Balance 

Other 
Funds RPTTF Admin 

RPTTF 
Bond 

Proceeds 
Reserve 
Balance 

Other 
Funds RPTTF Admin 

RPTTF 
   $182,886,873 $- $- $151,180 $13,842,099 $253,000 $14,246,279 $- $- $- $4,759,465 $- $4,759,465  
50 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds Bonds Issued On or 

Before 12/31/10 
$36,977,860 - - - - - $- - - - - - $- 

54 Fiscal agent/arbitrage svcs Fees $481,952 - - - 14,000 - $14,000 - - - - - $- 
56 HUD 108 Loan-Capital Projects CDBG/HUD Repayment 

to City/County 
$2,951,671 - - - 47,379 - $47,379 - - - - - $- 

58 HUD 108 Loan-Westgate CDBG/HUD Repayment 
to City/County 

$- - - - - - $- - - - - - $- 

63 External Project Costs Professional Services $416,998 - - - 20,000 - $20,000 - - - - - $- 
66 River Valley Redev. Proj. Area OPA/DDA/Construction $2,424,842 - - - - - $- - - - 59,465 - $59,465 
68 Anaheim Westgate Center Proj. Miscellaneous $5,737,242 - - - 114,347 - $114,347 - - - - - $- 
70 8.9-acre SoCal Edison Miscellaneous $13,344,192 - - - 302,405 - $302,405 - - - - - $- 
71 Shoe City lease Miscellaneous $1,605,791 - - - 20,238 - $20,238 - - - - - $- 
75 External Project Costs Professional Services $497,266 - - - 4,600 - $4,600 - - - 200,000 - $200,000 

103 External Project Costs Professional Services $- - - - - - $- - - - - - $- 
114 Avon Dakota Revitalization Miscellaneous $3,122,010 - - - 1,561,005 - $1,561,005 - - - - - $- 
115 Avon Dakota Revitalization Miscellaneous $718,000 - - - 359,000 - $359,000 - - - - - $- 
116 Project Management Project Management 

Costs 
$- - - - - - $- - - - - - $- 

117 External Project Costs Professional Services $- - - - - - $- - - - - - $- 
135 Administrative Cost Allowance Admin Costs $506,000 - - - - - $- - - - - - $- 
151 Westgate Remediation (Previous 

ROPS Line 100) 
Remediation $18,158,041 - - - 1,500,000 - $1,500,000 - - - 4,500,000 - $4,500,000 

187 Domain Project Area Remediation Remediation $302,360 - - 151,180 - - $151,180 - - - - - $- 
191 Insurance for Westgate LandFill 

(Related to Line 151) 
Remediation $- - - - - - $- - - - - - $- 

193 2018 Refunding Bonds Series A Bonds Issued On or 
Before 12/31/10 

$95,257,250 - - - 9,874,125 - $9,874,125 - - - - - $- 

195 Westgate Remediation - Water 
Control Board 

Remediation $385,398 - - - 25,000 - $25,000 - - - - - $- 



Tetra Tech BAS 
21700 Copley Drive, Suite 200, Diamond Bar, CA 91765 

Tel  909.860.7777    Fax 909.860.8017    www.tetratech.com 
 

 
 
August 14, 2024  
 
Stephen Stoewer 
Housing & Community Development Department 
201 South Anaheim Blvd. 10th Floor 
Anaheim, Ca 92805 
 
RE: UPDATED WESTGATE REMEDIATION COSTS FOR CITY FOR ANAHEIM 
 JULY 1, 2024 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2025 
 
Dear Mr. Stoewer: 
 
At the request of the City of Anaheim (the City), Tetra Tech BAS (TT-BAS) has prepared this 
update to the planning level evaluation for the anticipated scope and costs for the City’s 
Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) from the California Department of 
Finance (DoF) for the period from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 relating to the 
currently projected in-place closure and clean closure activities associated with the Davis 
Mud Pit and  the Sparks, Anderson, Rains Pits Landfill.  The scope and costs included 
herein are updates to the original estimates provided in our letter of December 15, 2023 
and are intended for the City’s planning purposes.  Proposals for various work items will 
be provided separately based on the City’s decisions regarding the appropriate path 
forward.   
 
All work will be performed in accordance with the Requirements of Title 27 of the 
California Code of Regulations and applicable local requirements.  Clean Closure of the 
Davis Mud Pit portion of the site has been partially completed.  Completion of these 
activities, as well as in-place closure of the small remaining portions of that disposal area 
are anticipated to occur during the ROPS 2024-2025 period.  In-place closure activities 
are associated with the phased closure of four separate portions of the Sparks, Anderson, 
Rains Pits Landfill.  Phase I and II closure activities were completed prior to the ROPS 
period in question.  Based on the recent developments relating to the relinquishment of 
Beach Blvd. from Caltrans back to the City, and in recognition of the long term technical, 
logistical and financial considerations associated with in-place closure, clean closure has 
been determined to be the preferred approach for addressing the residual Davis Mud Pit 
wastes beneath Beach Boulevard.  Phase IV Closure planning and engineering for the 
remainder of the Sparks, Anderson Rains Pits are anticipated to occur during the ROPS 
2024-2025 period. 
 
The following sections detail the various activities that will need to be performed.  Costs 
and schedule considerations are provided for each major scope. 
 
  



Re: Westgate Update of Remediation Costs for City of Anaheim 
August 14, 2024 
Page 2 of 5 
 
COMPLETION OF CLEAN CLOSE THE DAVIS MUD PIT 
 
Davis Mud Pit clean closure activities, were recommenced on July 1, 2024, as planned. 
During implementation of these activities, a mud and waste was found to encroach 
nearer than expected to the north boundary of the City-owned property.  In order to 
address this condition, specialized removal actions will likely be required and are 
anticipated to include the following. 
 

• Slot cutting of alternating removal trenches perpendicular to the property 
boundary under supervision of a registered geotechnical engineer. 

• Direct loading and disposal of slot cut materials. 
• Haul and dispose of excavated material 
• Increased confirmation sampling frequency to allow for immediate backfilling of 

the slot trenches. 
• Backfilling of the slot cut trenches with concrete slurry. 
• Based on the results of confirmation sampling, perform the following activities to 

remove residual impacts: 
 Demolition of the two northern perimeter walls 
 Design, installation and subsequent removal of shoring 
 Excavation of residual impacted material within the City-owned property 
 Direct load excavated material for disposal 
 Haul and dispose of excavated material 
 Backfill with clean import material 
 Reconstruction of northern perimeter wall 

 
Anticipated Time to Complete:  3 Months 
Anticipated Added Cost:  $3,000,000.00 

 
PARTIAL CLEAN CLOSURE OF THE SOUTHWEST DAVIS MUD PIT 
 
In the original December 15, 2023 projection two options were provided for this task (In-
Place Closure and Clean Closure) and both encompassed engineering, coordination 
between the regulators and developers, permitting, and construction of the in-place 
closure of the extreme southwestern portions of the Davis Mud Pit, within current City-
owned property.  However, since development of the December 15, 2024 projection, the 
timeline for relinquishment of Beach Blvd. by Caltrans to the City has been accelerated 
and will occur in the latter part of calendar 2024.  This will expand the area requiring 
closure and impact the long term technical, logistical and financial considerations 
associated with in-place closure such that, clean closure has been determined to be the 
preferred approach for this area.  Tasks associated with clean closure of the expanded 
area are as follows: 

• Engineering and encroachment permits from both Caltrans and the City. 
• Investigation of the expanded area for limits of waste. 
• Pre-removal confirmation sampling. 
• Pre-removal protection and/or relocation of existing improvements within 

the expanded area.  



Re: Westgate Update of Remediation Costs for City of Anaheim 
August 14, 2024 
Page 3 of 5 
 

• Removal of mud and waste through concentric borehole drilling 
• Off-site disposal of removed material 
• Back filling of borings 
• Replacement of paved surface 
• Replacement of improvements within the expanded area 

 
Because of the expanded closure area and in consideration of added complexity 
related to the relinquishment of Beach Blvd, additional costs are projected. 
 
Anticipated Time to Complete:  3 Months 
Anticipated Added Cost:  $1,500,000 
 
PHASE III CLOSURE ENGINEERING AND CONSTRUCTION 

The scope and budget for this task presented in the original December 15, 2023 estimate 
has not changed. 

Anticipated Time to Complete:  12 Months 
Anticipated Added Cost:  No Change 
 

PHASE IV CLOSURE PLANNING 

The scope and budget for this task presented in the original December 15, 2023 estimate 
has not changed. 

Anticipated Time to Complete:  12 Months 
Anticipated Added Cost:  No Change 
 

ROUTINE LANDFILL GAS MAINTENANCE, MONITORING, AND REPORTING 

The scope and budget for this task presented in the original December 15, 2023 estimate 
has not changed. 

Anticipated Time to Complete:  Continuing Basis 
Anticipated Added Cost:  No Change 
 

NON-ROUTINE LANDFILL GAS SYSTEM MAINTENANCE, MONITORING, AND REPORTING 

The scope and budget for this task presented in the original December 15, 2023 estimate 
has not changed. 

Anticipated Time to Complete:  12 Months 
Anticipated Added Cost:  No Change 

  



Re: Westgate Update of Remediation Costs for City of Anaheim 
August 14, 2024 
Page 4 of 5 
 
ROUTINE GROUNDWATER ACTIVITIES 

The scope and budget for this task presented in the original December 15, 2023 estimate 
has not changed. 

Anticipated Time to Complete:  Continuing Basis 
Anticipated Added Cost:  No Change 

 
NON-ROUTINE GROUNDWATER ACTIVITIES 

The scope and budget for this task presented in the original December 15, 2023 estimate 
has not changed. 

Anticipated Time to Complete:  Continuing Basis 
Anticipated Added Cost:  No Change 

 
ROUTINE GENERAL SITE MAINTENANCE 

The scope and budget for this task presented in the original December 15, 2023 estimate 
has not changed. 

Anticipated Time to Complete:  Continuing Basis 
Anticipated Added Cost:  No Change 

 
NON-ROUTINE GENERAL SITE MAINTENANCE 

The scope and budget for this task presented in the original December 15, 2023 estimate 
has not changed. 

Anticipated Time to Complete:  Continuing Basis 
Anticipated Added Cost:  No Change 

 
SUMMARY 

Based on the planning level assessment presented herein the following summary is 
provided. 

Element Updated Cost / Duration 

Davis Mud Pit Clean Closure $3,000,000 
Partial In-Place/Clean Close of the Southwest Davis Mud Pit $1,500,000 
Phase III Closure No Change 
Phase IV Closure No Change 
Routine Landfill Gas OM&M No Change 
Non-Routine Landfill Gas System OM&M No Change 
Routine Groundwater Activities No Change 
Non-Routine Groundwater Activities No Change 
Routine General Site Maintenance No Change 
Non-Routine General Site Maintenance No Change 

TOTAL: $4,500,000 
Estimated Overall Implementation Time 9 to 12 months 



Re: Westgate Update of Remediation Costs for City of Anaheim 
August 14, 2024 
Page 5 of 5 
 
 
We look forward to providing continued support to the City on this project.  Should you have 
any questions or comments regarding this planning level evaluation or any of the 
assumptions made herein, please do not hesitate to contact me directly. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
  
Greg Acosta, P.E. 
Vice President, Environmental Services 



 4862-3626-3735v2/022363-0037 

Orange Countywide Oversight Board 
 

Agenda Item No. 9a 
Date: 9/17/2024 
 
From: Successor Agency to the Anaheim Redevelopment Agency  
 
Subject: Resolution of the Countywide Oversight Board Approving License/Right-of-Entry Agreement 

between the City of Anaheim as Successor to the Anaheim Redevelopment Agency and the City 
of Anaheim 

 
Recommended Action: 
Approve resolution approving License/Right-of-Entry Agreement between the City of Anaheim as 
Successor to the Anaheim Redevelopment Agency and the City of Anaheim 

 
 
The Anaheim Successor Agency ("Successor Agency") requests Countywide Oversight Board ("Oversight 
Board") approval of a License/Right-of-Entry Agreement ("License Agreement") between the City of 
Anaheim as Successor to the Anaheim Redevelopment Agency ("Agency") and the City of Anaheim 
("City"). 
 
Southern California Edison Company ("Edison") entered into an Option Agreement with Katella Operating 
Properties, LLC ("KOP") on March 5, 1999, for property located at 1604 South Anaheim Boulevard (the 
"Property"). KOP then entered into a Sublicense/Sublease Agreement with the Agency (now the Successor 
Agency) on April 30, 2001 (the "KOP Sublease Agreement"). The Agency then entered into a Sub-
Sublease Agreement with American Sports Center ("ASC"), which was terminated on March 31, 2023, 
after an ASC default.   
 
The Successor Agency is seeking approval from the Countywide Oversight Board for a new License 
Agreement with the City for use by the Anaheim Convention Center ("ACC") for truck marshaling whereby 
freight trucks will store truck trailers related to convention center events. The License Agreement will not 
require physical improvements to the Property by ACC. 
 
The KOP Sublease Agreement is an approved enforceable obligation and is identified on the Successor 
Agency’s Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule ("ROPS") under Line-Item No. 70. The current 
monthly payment to KOP is $50,400.81 ($604,809.72 per fiscal year), which is paid through the 
Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund ("RPTTF").   
 
Under the License Agreement, ACC (through the City) would pay $20,000 per month ($240,000 per fiscal 
year) to the Successor Agency, and assume all Property maintenance, security, and management duties. 
The initial License Agreement term is five (5) years with two (2) five-year options to extend, which would 
expire on May 21, 2029. The License Agreement also includes scheduled monthly rent increases of 3% per 
year after the initial five-year term as shown in the monthly payment schedule in Attachment 3.  
 
Both Edison and KOP have reviewed and approved the Successor Agency’s request to enter into a license 
agreement with ACC. Further, the License Agreement was approved by the City, serving as the Successor 
Agency Board, at its meeting on May 21, 2024.  It should be noted that due to restrictions contained in the 
KOP Sublease Agreement, most of the Property is not suitable for uses requiring improvements. 
 
If the License Agreement is approved by the Oversight Board, the new payment amount requested from the 
RPTTF for Line-Item No. 70, starting with the ROPS 2025-26, will be $30,400.81 per month ($364,809.72 
per fiscal year), which is a reduction of $20,000 per month ($240,000 per fiscal year) from the ROPS 24-
25.  The amount of future RPTTF payment requests for Line-Item No. 70 will be calculated in accordance 
with the monthly rent schedule in Attachment 3.  



 4862-3626-3735v2/022363-0037 

 
Impact on Taxing Entities 
 
Approval of the License Agreement will reduce the amount of RPTTF requested by approximately $20,000 
per month ($240,000 per fiscal year) for ROPS 2025-26, which would increase the residual RPTTF to the 
taxing entities.  
 
Staff Contact(s) 
 
Sergio Ramirez, Economic Development Director  
sramirez@anaheim.net  
 
Stephen Stoewer, Senior Project Manager  
SStoewer@anaheim.net  
 
Attachments 

1. Resolution  
2. City Council Minutes  
3. License/Right-of-Entry Agreement 

mailto:sramirez@anaheim.net
mailto:SStoewer@anaheim.net


Page 1 of 2 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD  
RESOLUTION NO. 24-030 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE OVERSIGHT BOARD APPROVING 
LICENSE/RIGHT-OF-ENTRY AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE SUCCESSOR 

AGENCY TO THE ANAHEIM REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY AND THE CITY OF 
ANAHEIM  

WHEREAS, the former Anaheim Redevelopment Agency (“Former Agency”) previously was 
a community redevelopment agency that was previously organized and existing under the California 
Community Redevelopment Law, Health and Safety Code Section 33000, et seq., and previously 
authorized to transact business and exercise powers of a redevelopment agency pursuant to action of 
the City Council of the City of Anaheim (“City”); and 

WHEREAS, Assembly Bill x1 26 added Parts 1.8 and 1.85 to Division 24 of the California 
Health and Safety Code, which caused the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies and wind down 
of the affairs of former agencies, including as such laws were amended by Assembly Bill 1484 and by 
other subsequent legislation (“Dissolution Law”); and 

WHEREAS, as of February 1, 2012 the Agency was dissolved pursuant to the Dissolution 
Law, and as a separate public entity, corporate and policy the Successor Agency to the Anaheim 
Redevelopment Agency (“Successor Agency”) administers the enforcement obligations of the Former 
Agency and otherwise unwinds the Former Agency’s affairs; and 

WHEREAS, prior to July 1, 2018 under the Dissolution Law, in particular Sections 34179 and 
34180, all actions of the Successor Agency were subject to the review and approval by a local seven-
member oversight board, which oversaw and administered the Successor Agency’s activities during 
the period from dissolution until June 30, 2018; and  

WHEREAS, as of, on and after July 1, 2018, under the Dissolution Law, in particular Section 
34179(j), in every California county there shall be only one oversight board that is staffed by the county 
auditor-controller, with certain exceptions that do not apply in the County of Orange; and 

WHEREAS, as of, on and after July 1, 2018, the Orange Countywide Oversight Board 
(“Oversight Board”) was established through the Orange County Auditor-Controller in compliance 
with Section 34179(j), which serves as the oversight board to the 25 successor agencies existing and 
operating in Orange County, including Successor Agency and all other successor agencies in Orange 
County; and 

WHEREAS, Southern California Edison Company ("Edison") entered into an Option 
Agreement with Katella Operating Properties, LLC ("KOP") on March 5, 1999, for property located 
at 1604 South Anaheim Boulevard (the "Property"). KOP then entered into a Sublicense/Sublease 
Agreement with the Agency (now the Successor Agency) on April 30, 2001 (the "KOP Sublease 
Agreement"); and  

WHEREAS, The Successor Agency then entered into a Sub-Sublease Agreement with 
American Sports Center ("ASC"), which was terminated on March 31, 2023, after an ASC default; and   



Page 2 of 2 
 

WHEREAS, The KOP Sublease Agreement is an approved enforceable obligation and is 
identified on the Successor Agency’s Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule ("ROPS") under 
Line-Item No. 70.  The current monthly payment to KOP is $50,400.81 ($604,809.72 per fiscal year), 
which is paid through the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund ("RPTTF"); and   

WHEREAS, The Successor Agency is seeking approval of a new license/right of entry 
agreement with the City (the "License Agreement") for use by the Anaheim Convention Center 
("ACC") for the purpose, among others, of truck marshaling whereby freight trucks will store truck 
trailers related to convention center events; and 

WHEREAS, Under the License Agreement, ACC (through the City) would pay $20,000 per 
month ($240,000 per fiscal year) to the Successor Agency, and assume all Property maintenance, 
security, and management duties. The initial License Agreement term is five (5) years with two (2) 
five-year options to extend and includes scheduled monthly rent increases of 3% per year after the 
initial five-year term; and 

WHEREAS, If the License Agreement is approved by the Oversight Board, the new payment 
amount requested from the RPTTF for Line-Item No. 70 starting in ROPS 2025-26 will be $30,400.81 
per month ($364,809.72 per fiscal year), during the initial five-year term of the License Agreement, 
which is a reduction of $20,000 per month ($240,000 per fiscal year) from the ROPS 2024-25.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE ORANGE COUNTYWIDE 
OVERSIGHT BOARD: 

SECTION 1. The foregoing recitals are incorporated into this Resolution by this reference, 
and constitute a material part of this Resolution. 

SECTION 2. The Orange Countywide Oversight Board hereby approves the License 
Agreement and the execution thereof by the Successor Agency.  

SECTION 3. Under Section 34179(h) written notice and information about certain actions 
taken by the Orange Countywide Oversight Board shall be provided to the DOF by electronic 
means and in a manner of DOF’s choosing. The Orange Countywide Oversight Board’s action 
shall become effective five (5) business days after notice in the manner specified by the DOF 
unless the DOF requests a review. 

SECTION 4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

 



ANAHEIM CITY COUNCIL  
ACTION AGENDA 

MAY 21, 2024 
CITY COUNCIL 

SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE ANAHEIM REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

HOUSING AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AUTHORITY 
HOUSING AUTHORITY 

 

 ORDER OF BUSINESS:  Public sessions of all regular meetings of the City Council/Successor Agency to 
the Redevelopment Agency/Housing Authority/Public Financing Authority/Housing and Public Improvements 
Authority begin at 5:00 P.M.  Public hearings begin at 5:30 P.M. unless otherwise noted. Closed sessions 
begin at 3:00 P.M. or such other time as noted.  Closed sessions may be preceded by one or more public 
workshops.  If a workshop is scheduled, the subject and time of the workshop will appear on the agenda.  
Not all of the above agencies may be meeting on any given date. The agenda will specify which agencies 
are meeting. All meetings are in the Anaheim City Hall, Council Chamber, 200 S. Anaheim Blvd., Anaheim, 
CA 92805 or such other location as noted.  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(a)(2), no action 
or discussion by the City Council shall be undertaken on any item not appearing on the posted agenda, 
except to briefly provide information, ask for clarification, provide direction to staff, or schedule a matter for a 
future meeting. 
 REPORTS:  All agenda items and reports are available for review in the City Clerk’s Office and 
www.anaheim.net/councilagendas.  Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council 
regarding any item on this agenda (other than writings legally exempt from public disclosure) are available at 
the Office of the City Clerk, located at 200 S. Anaheim Blvd., 2nd Floor, Anaheim, CA 92805 and by 
contacting the office by phone, 714-765-5166, or email to cityclerk@anaheim.net. 
 PUBLIC COMMENTS:  There are two Public Comment periods with speakers having one opportunity to 
address the City Council, except for scheduled public hearing items. Public comments are limited to three (3) 
minutes per speaker, unless a different time limit is announced. The City uses speaker cards that must be 
submitted to the City Clerk in order to address the City Council.  Prior to the business portion of the agenda, 
the City Council and all other related agencies meeting on such date will convene in joint session for the first 
Public Comment period where speakers will be permitted to speak on specific agenda item(s).  This first 
Public Comment period is limited to 90 minutes or until all agenda item speakers have been heard, 
whichever is later.  Any remaining time shall be provided to non-agenda item speakers until the 90 minute 
time limitation is exhausted.  The second Public Comment period will be opened by the Mayor if any non-
agenda item speakers were not called during the first Public Comment period.  For public hearings, the 
Mayor or Chairperson will separately call for testimony at the time of each public hearing.  Testimony during 
public hearings is subject to the following time limits: Project applicant or issue initiator: twenty minutes for 
initial presentation and ten minutes for rebuttal; Residents within the noticed area of the subject property: ten 
minutes; All other members of the public: three minutes. Public hearings regarding legislative matters: five 
minutes. The Mayor or Chairperson may limit the length of comments during public hearings due to the 
number of persons wishing to speak or if comments become repetitious or irrelevant. Speakers shall refrain 
from profane language and other disruptive remarks or behavior which disrupts or disturbs the meeting, or 
risk being removed (AMC 1.12.017). Additionally, members of the public may correspond with the City 
Council and all other related agencies, on any agenda items or matters within the jurisdiction of such 
governing bodies, by submitting comments electronically for City Council consideration by sending them to 
publiccomment@anaheim.net. To ensure distribution to the City Council prior to consideration of the 
agenda, please submit comments at least 2 hours prior to the scheduled start time of the meeting.  
Those comments, as well as any comments received after that time, will be distributed to the City Council, 
posted on the City’s website, and will be made part of the official public record of the meeting.  Current and 
archived public comments are available at www.anaheim.net/publiccomment. Contact the City Clerk’s Office 
at 714-765-5166 or cityclerk@anaheim.net with any questions.  
 ADDITIONS/DELETIONS: Items of business may be added to the agenda upon a motion adopted by a 
minimum 2/3 vote finding that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action came to 
the attention of the City or Agency subsequent to the agenda being posted. Items may be deleted from the 
agenda upon request of staff or upon action of the Council or Agency.    
 CONSENT CALENDAR:  Consent Calendar items will be acted on by one roll call vote unless a 
member(s) requests an item(s) be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate 
action. 
 SERVICIOS DE TRADUCCION  (TRANSLATION SERVICES: SEE LAST PAGE OF AGENDA FOR 
DESCRIPTION IN ENGLISH): La ciudad provee servicios de interpretación al español en las juntas del 
Consejo. La interpretación simultánea al español se ofrece por medio del uso de audífonos y la 
interpretación consecutiva (español a inglés) también está disponible para cualquiera que desee dirigirse al 
Ayuntamiento, declarando su petición en el podio. No tiene que usar los servicios de interpretación de la 
Ciudad; las personas pueden proveer su propio intérprete, si lo desean.  Debido a que existen muchos 
dialectos y regionalismos, la Ciudad no puede garantizar que los intérpretes puedan traducir a un dialecto o 
regionalismo en particular y rehúsa cualquier responsabilidad que surja de tales servicios.  Para servicios de 
interpretación en otros idiomas, comuníquese con la oficina de la Ciudad (City Clerk), cuando menos 48 
horas antes de la junta programada.  

 

 
Ashleigh E. Aitken 
Mayor 
 
Norma Campos Kurtz 
Mayor Pro Tem 
District 4 

 
Jose Diaz 
Council Member 
District 1 
 
Carlos A. Leon 
Council Member 
District 2 
 
Natalie Rubalcava 
Council Member 
District 3 

 
Stephen Faessel 
Council Member 
District 5 
 
Natalie Meeks 
Council Member 
District 6 
 

200 S. Anaheim Blvd. 
Anaheim, CA 92805 
Tel: (714) 765-5166 
Fax (714) 765-4105 
www.anaheim.net 

http://www.anaheim.net/councilagendas.
mailto:cityclerk@anaheim.net
mailto:publiccomment@anaheim.net
https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.anaheim.net%2Fpubliccomment&data=04%7C01%7CJHall2%40anaheim.net%7C89902fb7f05445e3903a08d8b36068dc%7C74c3739c502a49c68d212bbc30f56f22%7C0%7C0%7C637456573958406587%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=lm5wdbmPZlIC4QSF0ustQ1Qw8nKO7c%2B%2FQCClQD5tKSA%3D&reserved=0
mailto:cityclerk@anaheim.net


 
 

 2 May 21, 2024 

  ANAHEIM CITY COUNCIL 
ANAHEIM, CALIFORNIA 

MAY 21, 2024 
2:30 P.M. 

Call to order the Anaheim City Council. 2:35 p.m. 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Aitken and Council Members Kurtz, Diaz, Leon, Rubalcava, 
Faessel, and Meeks.  

2:30 P.M. - CLOSED SESSION 
ADDITIONS/DELETIONS TO CLOSED SESSION:  None 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS: One (1) in-person speaker; no 
electronically submitted comments were received related to closed session. 

Recess to closed session.  2:39 p.m. 
 

1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
 (Subdivision (d)(1) of Section 54956.9 of the California Government Code 
 Name of Case:  Gaetz et al. v. City of Anaheim, et al., USDC Case No. 5:23-cv-01368 
 
2. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
 Initiation of litigation pursuant to paragraph (4) of subdivision (d) of California Government 

Code Section 54956.9:  Two potential cases 
 
3. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
 (Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of Subdivision (d) of California 

Government Code Section 54956.9):  One potential case 
(A copy of the claim against the City is included in the agenda packet and available for review by 
contacting the City Clerk’s Office and on-line electronically with the agenda at: 
www.anaheim.net/councilagendas.) 

 
4. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

(Subdivision (a) of Section 54957.6 of the California Government Code) 
Agency Designated Representative: Linda Andal, Human Resources Director 
Name of Employee Organizations:  (1) American Federation of State, County and Municipal 
Employees (General Management, Professional/Technical, and Confidential Units); (2) Anaheim 
Police Management Association; (3) Teamsters, Local 952; (4) Anaheim Municipal Employees 
Association, Police Cadet Unit; (5) International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers (IBEW), Local 
47; and IBEW, Local 47 Part-Time Customer Service Employees; (6) Service Employees’ 
International Union, United Service Workers West; (7) Anaheim Firefighters Association, Local 
2899; (8) Anaheim Municipal Employees Association (General, Clerical, Part-Time 
Units); (9) Anaheim Police Association; (10) International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, 
Local 47 (Professional Management and Part-Time Management Units) 

 
5. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

 (Subdivision (a) of Section 54957.6 of the California Code)  
 Agency Designated Representative:  Linda Andal, Human Resources Director 
 Name of Employee Organization:  Anaheim Municipal Employees Association,  Police Cadet 
 Unit 

http://www.anaheim.net/councilagendas


 
 

 3 May 21, 2024 

Reconvene the Anaheim City Council.  4:40 p.m. 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Aitken and Council Members Diaz, Leon, Faessel, and Meeks.  
Mayor Pro Tem Kurtz joined the meeting at 4:41 p.m. Council Member 
Rubalcava joined the meeting at 4:43 p.m. 

 

4:30 P.M. - WORKSHOP 

WORKSHOP:  Workforce Development Workshop 

PUBLIC COMMENTS ON WORKSHOP:  One (1) in-person speaker; no electronically submitted 
comments were received related to the workshop. 

 
5:00 P.M. 
INVOCATION:  Cantor Zev Brooks, Temple Beth Emet 

FLAG SALUTE:  Council Member Stephen Faessel 

PRESENTATIONS:  Recognizing Sister Johnellen Turner, O.P. for 17 years of service to  
St. Catherine’s Academy  
Accepted by Sister Johnellen Turner 

Recognizing Anaheim Elementary School District Superintendent Dr. Christopher 
Downing’s Retirement  
Accepted by Dr. Christopher Downing 

Recognizing Strong Water Anaheim for receiving Orange County’s sole 
nomination for the 2024 James Beard Foundation Awards  
Accepted by Ying Chang, Robert Adamson, and family 

Presentation by League of California Cities 
Presented by Connor Medina, Regional Public Affairs Manager, League of 
California Cities Orange County Division 

ACCEPTANCE OF OTHER RECOGNITIONS (To be presented at a later date): 

Recognizing May 22, 2024, as Harvey Milk Day  
Accepted by Peg Corley, Executive Director, LGBTQ Center Orange County 

Recognizing May 19-25, 2024, as National Public Works Week 
Accepted by Rudy Emami, Director of Public Works 

Recognizing May 19-25, 2024, as National Travel and Tourism Week 
Accepted by Pepe Avila, Vice President, Tourism & Partnership, Visit 
Anaheim 

Recognizing May 2024, as National Cities, Towns, and Villages Month 
Accepted by Connor Medina, Regional Public Affairs Manager, League of 
California Cities Orange County Division 



 
 

 4 May 21, 2024 

Call to order the Successor Agency to the Anaheim Redevelopment Agency, Anaheim Public Financing 
Authority, Anaheim Housing and Public Improvements Authority and Anaheim Housing Authority (in joint 
session with the City Council).   6:01 p.m. 

ADDITIONS/DELETIONS TO THE AGENDAS: None 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (all agenda items, except public hearings): Eleven (11) in-person speakers; 
City Clerk Theresa Bass reported fifteen (15) public comments were received electronically prior 
to 12:30 p.m. (Total of sixteen (16) public comments received via email).  
Public Comments Submitted – May 21, 2024 City Council Meeting 
(limited to 90 minutes, or until all agenda item speakers have been heard; any time remaining shall be 
provided to non-agenda item speakers) 

COUNCIL COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Kurtz stated that at the Council meeting of May 7, there was a public comment regarding 
a meeting on April 13 with Disney consultant Joe Haupt that she did not add to her public calendar. She 
clarified that she attended a DisneylandForward community meeting at Walnut Village and Mr. Haupt 
was in attendance, but she did not have a scheduled meeting with him. She highlighted the Ice Cream 
with a Cop event that she attended at Tocumbo Ice Cream and shared a photograph of the event. Mayor 
Pro Tem Kurtz thanked the Anaheim Police Department and volunteers who took the time to provide 
information to residents in attendance.  She noted that Anaheim Police Department volunteers spend 
hundreds of hours visiting residents who are homebound, provide house checks for individuals on 
vacation, and provide information to residents regarding how to contact the Police Department or other 
City departments. Mayor Pro Tem Kurtz thanked all the children and parents who participated in the 
event.  

Council Member Diaz shared that his office will be hosting a Beach Boulevard Business Assistance 
Community meeting on Thursday, May 30, 2024 from 4:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. at the West Anaheim Youth 
Center. On Wednesday, June 5 at 7:00 p.m. the District 1 and District 2 Offices will be hosting a District 
Community Meeting at the Brookhurst Community Center.  

Council Member Faessel requested adjourning the City Council meeting in memory of three individuals. 
He shared that "Speed" Castillo was an Anaheim High School District administrator, teacher, coach, and 
counselor. He was the Orange County liaison of officials for the CIF Southern Section. Speed Castillo will 
be fondly remembered by many Anaheim High School graduates. Jon Urbanchek was a longtime 
swimming coach at Anaheim High School, and then went on to become an Olympic swim coach. He was 
87. Lastly, Marie Santangelo, a 50-year resident of District 5, was a devoted wife, mother, and 
grandmother who recently passed away. Her husband Ray, daughter Stephanie, and grandson Luke will 
miss her. Council Member Faessel highlighted and shared photographs of events he attended including 
the Mexico en el Corazón event at Pearson Park.  He shared that Mexico’s finest musical groups 
performed at the event at no cost to residents. He attended the Gun Buyback event at the Brookhurst 
Community Center. His wife Susan attended the Disney VoluntEARS book giveaway at Sunkist 
Elementary School. Council Member Faessel shared that he joined Congressman Lou Correa and 
Assemblymember Avelino Valencia at South Junior High School to celebrate all the community and 
parent volunteers. Council Member Faessel attended the Community Development Block Grant 50th 
Anniversary event at the Downtown Community Center. He thanked Housing and Community 
Development Director Grace Ruiz-Stepter and Deputy Director Sandra Lozeau for organizing the event. 
He also thanked all the non-profit organizations who were in attendance and do remarkable work in the 
community.   

 

https://records.anaheim.net/CityClerk/Browse.aspx?id=5222770&dbid=0&repo=CITYOFANAHEIM


 
 

 5 May 21, 2024 

Council Member Rubalcava thanked everyone who participated in the public comment process. She 
highlighted and shared photographs of events she attended in District 3 including the Children's Festival 
at Pearson Park hosted by Muzeo Museum and Cultural Center. There were a lot of groups who 
participated including Vibrant Minds, Green Bird, Anaheim Beautiful Teen Ambassadors, members of the 
Halloween Parade team, and the SWAT team. Her office hosted and funded a Teacher Appreciation 
Lunch at Anaheim High School. Lunch was served to over 300 teachers by El Pollo Fino. Council 
Member Rubalcava thanked community leader Sofia Romero for hosting a community walk at Bush 
Street and Rose Street. She thanked Public Utilities General Manager Dukku Lee and Anaheim’s 
Community Police Team including Sergeant Lopez and Officer Avila, for attending the event. Some of 
the issues discussed were graffiti, gang activity, and infrastructure challenges that will be fixed. She 
stated that a playground was built at Little People’s Park, and she was grateful to work alongside so 
many people who truly love the City including City staff, Parks Commissioners and District 3 
Representative Carlotta Rhea Clark, Council Member Meeks, Police Chief Armendariz, Community 
Police Team, and hundreds of volunteers who came together to create a safe space for kids to play, 
socialize and thrive. The playground features a zipline, two slides, swings, a climbing wall, see-saw, 
drums and chimes, and an educational panel where kids can learn sign language. Little People's Park 
was the site where the Chicano riots of 1978 occurred between the Anaheim Police Department and 
Mexican American residents. This conflict helped improve ties between the police and the 
neighborhood's Mexican American community. Since then, the City has come a long way and continues 
to celebrate Chicano history and value the relationship with law enforcement. She mentioned that last 
year the Anaheim City Council adopted August as Chicano Heritage Month. She noted that the Little 
People’s Park playground sits alongside two iconic art murals including the 300-foot Chicano mural 
created in 2023 along the park's south edge and Emilio Vasquez’s historic Chicano mural across the 
street at Sohan American Market. The playground is located at 220 West Elm Street and will officially 
open May 17. Council Member Rubalcava thanked Director of Community Services Sjany Larson-Cash 
and her team, CarMax Foundation, KABOOM!, and Anaheim Family YMCA because they were 
instrumental in ensuring that the playground was built in two days. She stated she would like to pause 
and honor a great life that was recently lost.  Mr. Espiridion Castillo was best known by his nickname 
"Speed." He earned the name in high school when he ran the 400-yard dash in 50 seconds and 800 
yards in two minutes and 10 seconds. Speed was born in New Mexico and grew up in Arizona, but he 
was a big part of Anaheim. Speed was best known as a longtime referee for Anaheim High School sports 
and as a security officer at Disneyland. He also served as a Personnel Commissioner with the Anaheim 
Union High School District. Speed was often there to help students who couldn't afford graduation 
expenses or with other help. He was recently inducted into the Anaheim High School Hall of Fame. He 
was a proud Air Force veteran who also served in the Korean War and with the Strategic Air Command. 
She requested adjourning the City Council meeting in memory of Speed Castillo.  

Council Member Leon shared that throughout the month of May, he has been recognizing graduating 
seniors across District 2 from Magnolia High School, Loara High School, Savanna High School, as well 
as the Brookhurst Project S.A.Y Program. He congratulated the 2024 graduating class for their 
exceptional dedication, hard work and perseverance throughout their academic journey. For District 2 
residents living near Nutwood, he shared that he is continuing to meet with various stakeholders and 
trying to find a long-term solution for securing that area, especially by the railroad tracks between 
Crescent Avenue and Katella Avenue. He attended the Anaheim Car Club’s Second Annual Car Show 
and presented the club with a certificate of recognition in honor of their events and hard work. He 
thanked the Anaheim Car Club for making the event possible and for bringing Chicano pride to the City 
of Anaheim. He also attended the Children's Art Festival at Pearson Park. He thanked the Muzeo 
Museum and Cultural Center as well as the City’s Community Services team for organizing the event. He 
also thanked all the organizers, volunteers, performers, and attendees. Council Member Leon 
congratulated Bowl and Plate Eatery, the May Restaurant of the Month.  They are located off Magnolia 
Avenue and Ball Road. Every dish tells a story of a 10-year friendship and love for Vietnamese and Thai 
cuisine. This is a great spot to indulge in a celebration of multicultural Asian food that will tantalize taste 
buds and leave individuals craving for more. He invited everyone to visit Bowl and Plate Eatery. He 



 
 

 6 May 21, 2024 

stated that he joins his colleagues in remembering Speed Castillo. He sent his thoughts and prayers to 
his daughter, family, and all who knew him.  

Mayor Aitken thanked Attorney General Rob Bonta and Supervisors Doug Chaffee and Vicente 
Sarmiento for hosting the Gun Buyback Program in the City of Anaheim. She noted that 337 firearms 
were voluntarily turned in by community members in exchange for gift cards. Firearms turned in included 
assault rifles, handguns, and homemade 3D-printed weapons. She thanked the Anaheim Police 
Department for leading the event with the help of other local Police Departments. Mayor Aitken stated 
that seeing so many community members turn in firearms to make their communities safer was a great 
way to start Mother's Day. She joined Mayor Pro Tem Kurtz and Council Member Leon in welcoming 
Mobility 21 at a reception honoring members of the California Transportation Commission, which was 
hosted at ARTIC. The group is dedicated to finding transportation solutions in Southern California and as 
the Mayor of Anaheim, member of SCAG, and OCTA Board Member, it was nice to welcome the 
California Transportation Commission to Anaheim. 

 
CITY MANAGER’S UPDATE: 
 
City Manager Vanderpool noted that the Anaheim Public Library will be launching this year’s Summer Reading 
Program for all ages, “The Adventure Begins at Your Library,” from May 28, 2024 to August 4, 2024. He invited 
everyone to join the fun. He shared that the Anaheim Public Library Communications Team beat out over 334 
entries from across the country to receive the ALA PR Xchange Award in the External Communications category 
for their monthly Anaheim Public Library e-Newsletter. He shared that Anaheim Public Utilities is hosting their 
annual OC Green Expo on June 8, 2024 between 10:00 a.m. and 2:00 p.m. along Center Street Promenade. 
Residents are invited to learn how to be more sustainable by reducing energy and water use, planting a shade 
tree, test driving a zero-emission vehicle, and recycling e-waste and organics. Join city departments, non-profits, 
and eco-friendly organizations at this free event. Please visit anaheim.net/greenexpo to register. 

Recess the Anaheim City Council, Anaheim Public Financing Authority, Anaheim Housing and Public 
Improvements Authority, and Anaheim Housing Authority.  7:03 p.m. 

5:00 P.M. - SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 
 

Item pulled for discussion: 
 Council Member Meeks:  Item No. 2 

MOTION: SF/CL to approve the Consent Calendar as presented. ROLL CALL VOTE: 7-0. Motion 
carried. 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

1. Approve a License Agreement with the City of Anaheim, in a monthly rental rate of $20,000 for 
the initial term with a 3% annual rate increase for each subsequent year, for necessary truck 
marshaling space for the staging and storing of freight trucks and trailers in conjunction with 
Convention Center events, for a five-year term with two five-year optional renewals, and authorize 
the City Manager, or designee, to execute, implement, and administer the License Agreement on 
behalf of the Successor Agency [related to City Council Agenda Item No. 19]. 

 

https://anaheim.net/5223/OC-Green-Expo
LTereziu
Highlight



 
 

 7 May 21, 2024 

2. RESOLUTION NO.  SA-2024-001  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF ANAHEIM AS THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE ANAHEIM REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY authorizing the City Manager, or designee, to execute and administer licenses and right 
of entry agreements allowing for temporary beneficial use of real property assets until such time 
as these properties are ready for disposition or development [related to City Council Agenda Item 
No. 24].  
Item No. 2 Discussion.  MOTION: NM/CL ROLL CALL VOTE: 7-0.  Motion carried. 

3. RESOLUTION NO.  SA-2024-002   A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF ANAHEIM AS THE SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE ANAHEIM REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY declaring certain properties to be “Exempt Surplus Land” pursuant to California 
Government Code Section 54221(f)(1) [includes determination that the action will not result in a 
direct or indirect physical change in the environment and does not constitute an “approval” of a 
“project” pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Sections 15004 and 15352]. 

4. Approve minutes of the Successor Agency to the Anaheim Redevelopment Agency meeting of 
March 26, 2024. 

Adjourn the Successor Agency to the Anaheim Redevelopment Agency. 7:13 p.m. 

Reconvene the Anaheim Public Financing Authority.  7:13 p.m. 

5:00 P.M. - PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY 

MOTION: SF/CL to approve the Consent Calendar as presented. ROLL CALL VOTE: 7-0. Motion 
carried. 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

5. RESOLUTION NO.  APFA-2024-002  A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE ANAHEIM PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY amending the dates and times for regular 
meetings of the Authority for the 2024 calendar year and rescinding Resolution No. APFA-2024-
001 [rescheduling the meeting of August 6 to August 13, 2024; and the meeting of July 2 to July 
23, 2024]. 

6. Approve minutes of the Public Financing Authority meeting of January 23, 2024. 

Adjourn the Anaheim Public Financing Authority.  7:14 p.m.  

Reconvene the Anaheim Housing and Public Improvements Authority.  7:14 p.m. 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 8 May 21, 2024 

5:00 P.M. – HOUSING AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AUTHORITY 

MOTION: CL/NK to approve the Consent Calendar as presented. ROLL CALL VOTE: 7-0. Motion 
carried. 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

7. RESOLUTION NO.  AHPIA-2024-002  A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF 
THE ANAHEIM HOUSING AND PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AUTHORITY amending the dates 
and times for regular meetings of the Authority for the 2024 calendar year and rescinding 
Resolution No. AHPIA-2024-001 [rescheduling the meeting of August 6 to August 13, 2024; and 
the meeting of July 2 to July 23, 2024]. 

8. Approve minutes of the Housing and Public Improvements Authority meeting of January 23, 
2024.  

Adjourn the Anaheim Housing and Public Improvements Authority.  7:15 p.m. 

Reconvene the Anaheim Housing Authority.  7:15 p.m. 

5:00 P.M. - HOUSING AUTHORITY 

MOTION: NK/NM to approve the Consent Calendar as presented. ROLL CALL VOTE: 7-0. Motion 
carried. 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

9. RESOLUTION NO.  AHA-2024-002  A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF 
THE ANAHEIM HOUSING AUTHORITY amending the dates and times for regular meetings of 
the Authority for the 2024 calendar year and rescinding Resolution No. AHA-2024-001 
[rescheduling the meeting of August 6 to August 13, 2024; and the meeting of July 2 to July 23, 
2024]. 

5:00 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING:  7:16 p.m. 
 
At 7:16 p.m., Council Member Diaz recused himself due to a conflict of real property interest as 
his residence is within 500 feet from the subject property and left the dais.  

10. Public hearing to consider a resolution of public interest, convenience and necessity for the 
acquisition of property located at 831 S. Beach Boulevard (APN 079-164-13). 
 
RESOLUTION NO.  AHA-2024-003  A RESOLUTION OF THE GOVERNING BOARD OF 
THE ANAHEIM HOUSING AUTHORITY finding and determining that the public interest, 
convenience and necessity require the acquisition of certain real property located at 831 S. 
Beach Boulevard for public purposes (APN 079-164-13). 

Item No. 10  Discussion. Mayor Aitken opened the public hearing at 7:32 p.m. Two (2) in-
person speakers; No electronic public comments submitted. Mayor Aitken closed the 



 
 

 9 May 21, 2024 

public hearing at 7:41 p.m.  
 
MOTION: NR/NK ROLL CALL VOTE: 6-0-1. (AYES: Mayor Aitken and Council Members 
Kurtz, Leon, Rubalcava, Faessel, and Meeks; ABSTAIN (recusal): Council Member Diaz). 
Motion carried. 

 
Adjourn the Anaheim Housing Authority. 7:45 p.m.    

 
Reconvene the Anaheim City Council. 7:45 p.m.   

5:00 P.M. - CITY COUNCIL 
 
Council Member Diaz returned to the dais at 7:45 p.m.   
 
Item pulled for discussion: 
 Council Member Leon:  Item No. 28 
 

MOTION: SF/CL Waive reading of all ordinances and resolutions and adopt the consent calendar. 
ROLL CALL VOTE: 7-0. Motion carried.  

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

11. Receive and file minutes of the Library Board meeting of April 8, 2024 and the Senior Citizen 
Commission meetings of February 15, 2024 and March 21, 2024. 

12. Approve recognitions recognizing Hephatha Lutheran Church and School’s Golden 50th 
Anniversary; Gilbert High School’s Sports Intervention Program; Maryanne Rogers for turning 100 
years old on July 27, 2024; Anaheim Police Department for participating in the 2024 End of 
Watch Memorial Bike Ride; August 14-17, 2024 as Toastmasters International Week, and 
celebrating the 100th Anniversary of Toastmasters; and June 19, 2024 as Juneteenth. 

13. Receive and file the list of Professional Service Agreements executed by the City Manager in 
April 2024. 

14. Adopt a Seven-Year Transportation Capital Improvement Program for Fiscal Years 2024-25 
through 2030-31. 

15. Award the contract to the lowest responsible bidder, Allison Mechanical, Inc., in the amount of 
$877,000, for the Anaheim Convention Center North Pony Chiller Installation and Related Work 
Project; find that, pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 3400(c)(2), a particular brand of 
equipment was specified in the solicitation for bid in order to match other products in use at the 
Anaheim Convention Center North Facility; authorize the Director of Public Works to execute the 
contract and related documents and to take the necessary actions to implement and administer 
the contract; and authorize the Finance Director to execute the Escrow Agreement pertaining to 
contract retentions. 



 
 

 10 May 21, 2024 

16. Approve the Professional Services Agreement with thirty-four consultants, each in an amount not 
to exceed $400,000 per Work Order Package with a total contract amount not to exceed 
$1,000,000 per contract year per consultant company plus a 15% contingency for as needed 
professional engineering and design services to support the Design Services Section of the 
Department of Public Works for a three year term with two one-year optional renewals; authorize 
the Director of Public Works to execute the agreements and to take the necessary actions to 
implement and administer the agreements; and authorize de minimis changes that do not 
substantially change the terms and conditions of the agreements, so long as such changes are 
determined to be de minimis by the City Attorney’s Office [AKM Consulting Engineers; Architerra 
Design Group; Ardurra Group, Inc.; Aztec Engineering California, Inc.; Biggs Cardosa Associates, 
Inc.; BKF Engineers; Cannon Corporation; Cho Design Associates, Inc.; David Evans and 
Associates, Inc.; David Volz Design; DRC Engineering Inc.; EEC Environmental; Fuscoe 
Engineering, Inc.; GHD Inc.; Harris and Associates; Hunsaker and Associates; IDS Group, Inc.; 
Infrastructure Engineers; JMDiaz Inc.; Kreuzer Consulting Group; Mark Thomas and Company, 
Inc.; Nichols Consulting Engineers, Chtd.; Nuvis; NV5, Inc.; Onward Engineering; Pacific 
Advanced Civil Engineering, Inc.; Q3 Consulting; Rick Engineering Company; Stantec Consulting 
Services; TKE Engineering, Inc.; Verde Design Group Landscape; Willdan Engineering; Wood 
Rogers, Inc.; and Woodard and Curran]. 

17. Approve the Professional Services Agreement with Chicago Title Company, in an amount not to 
exceed $250,000 per Work Order Package with a total contract amount not to exceed $1,000,000 
per contract year plus a 15% contingency for as needed extra services, for Title Report and 
Escrow Services to support the Design Services Section of the Department of Public Works for a 
three year term with two one-year optional renewals; authorize the Director of Public Works to 
execute the agreement and to take the necessary actions to implement and administer the 
agreement; and authorize de minimis changes that do not substantially change the terms and 
conditions of the agreement, so long as such changes are determined to be de minimis by the 
City Attorney’s Office. 

18. Approve the Professional Services Agreements with three consultants, each in an amount not to 
exceed $200,000, for on-call broker services to support current and future economic development 
activities for a two year term beginning July 1, 2024 with two additional two-year extensions; and 
authorize the City Manager, or designee, to execute, administer, and implement the agreements 
[CBRE, Inc., Jones Lang LaSalle Brokerage, Inc., and Kosmont Real Estate Services, dba 
Kosmont Realty]. 

19. Approve a License Agreement with the Successor Agency to the Anaheim Redevelopment 
Agency, in a monthly rental rate of $20,000 for the initial term with a 3% annual rate increase for 
each subsequent year, for necessary truck marshaling space for the staging and storing of freight 
trucks and trailers in conjunction with Convention Center events, for a five-year term with two five-
year optional renewals, and authorize the City Manager, or designee, to execute, implement, and 
administer the License Agreement on behalf of the Successor Agency [related to Successor 
Agency to the Anaheim Redevelopment Agency Agenda Item No. 01]. 

20. Approve the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with the Orange County Continuum of Care, 
County of Orange, and Cities of Irvine and Santa Ana for Round 5 of the Homeless Housing 
Assistance and Prevention Program Commitment to Partnership and Participation in a regionally 
coordinated homelessness action plan; authorize the City Manager, or designee, to execute the 
MOU and to take the necessary actions to implement activities to coordinate homelessness 
housing interventions and supportive services in the region consistent with the guidance issued 
by the State of California’s Interagency Council on Homelessness. 

LTereziu
Highlight



 
 

 11 May 21, 2024 

21. Approve the First Amendment to Agreement with HeliStream, Inc. to increase the not-to-exceed 
amount from $120,000 to $250,000 for helicopter pilot training. 

22. RESOLUTION NO.  2024-040  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF ANAHEIM adopting the FY 2024-25 project list for the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 
2017. 

23. RESOLUTION NO.  2024-041  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF ANAHEIM declaring its intention to amend Ordinance No. 6469 granting a non-exclusive 
franchise to Chapman University for transportation services within and around the City of 
Anaheim and stating the terms and conditions upon which said franchise is amended, and 
establishing a time and date of a public hearing to consider said amendment [includes 
determination that the request is exempt from the provisions of the California Environmental 
Quality Act pursuant to Section 21080(b)(10) of the California Public Resources Code as this 
request involves passenger transportation service on existing streets] [Public Hearing scheduled 
for Council Meeting of June 18, 2024].  

24. RESOLUTION NO.  2024-042  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF ANAHEIM authorizing the City Manager, or designee, to execute and administer licenses and 
right of entry agreements allowing for temporary beneficial use of real property assets until such 
time as these properties are ready for disposition or development [related to Successor Agency to 
the Anaheim Redevelopment Agency Agenda Item No. 02]. 

25. RESOLUTION NO.  2024-043  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF ANAHEIM declaring a certain property to be “Exempt Surplus Land” Pursuant to California 
Government Code Section 54221(f)(1) [includes determination that the action will not result in a 
direct or indirect physical change in the environment and does not constitute an “approval” of a 
“project” pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines Sections 15004 and 15352] 
[located at the southwest corner of Lincoln Avenue at Manchester Avenue]. 

26. RESOLUTION NO.  2024-044  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF ANAHEIM amending the dates and times for regular meetings of the Anaheim City Council for 
the 2024 calendar year and rescinding Resolution No. 2024-008 [rescheduling the meeting of 
August 6 to August 13, 2024; and the meeting of July 2 to July 23, 2024]. 

27. ORDINANCE NO.  6578   (INTRODUCTION) AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ANAHEIM amending a portion of Ordinance No. 6570, nunc pro 
tunc, to correct clerical drafting errors pertaining to the amendment of a certain section of the 
Anaheim Municipal Code [Chapter 18.14 (Public and Special-Purpose Zones) of Title 18 
(Zoning)]. 

28. Approve the Public Art Guidelines, a document that implements the Public Art Plan and outlines 
the administration of the Public Art Program, as authorized by Anaheim Municipal Code Chapter 
17.37 (Public Art).  
 
ORDINANCE NO.  6579   (INTRODUCTION) AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ANAHEIM amending Chapter 17.37 (Public Art) of Title 17 (Land 
Development and Resources) of the Anaheim Municipal Code for the purpose of promoting the 



 
 

 12 May 21, 2024 

installation, maintenance, and restoration of public art and determining that this ordinance is 
exempt from the requirements to prepare additional environmental documentation per California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, Sections 15060(c)(2), 15060(c)(3) and 
15061(b)(3) because it will not result in a direct or reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment. 

ORDINANCE NO.  6580   (INTRODUCTION) AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ANAHEIM amending Chapters 18.06 (Multi-Family Residential 
Zones); 18.08 (Commercial Zones); 18.10 (Industrial Zone); 18.14 (Public and Special-Purpose 
Zones); 18.20 (Platinum Triangle Mixed Use (PTMU) Overlay Zone); 18.30 (Downtown Mixed 
Use (DMU) Overlay Zone); 18.32 (Mixed Use (MU) Overlay Zone); 18.36 (Types of Uses); 18.44 
(Signs); 18.62 (Administrative Reviews); 18.120 (Anaheim Canyon Specific Plan No. 2015-1 (SP 
2015-1) Zoning and Development Standards); and 18.122 (Beach Boulevard Specific Plan No. 
2017-1 (SP 2017-1) Zoning and Development Standards) of Title 18 (Zoning) of the Anaheim 
Municipal Code; Adjustment No. 14 to the Anaheim Canyon Specific Plan No. 2015-1 (SP 2015-
1) Zoning and Development Standards; Adjustment No. 8 to the Beach Boulevard Specific Plan 
No. 2017-1 (SP 2017-1) Zoning and Development Standards; and finding and determining that 
this ordinance is not subject to the requirements to prepare additional environmental 
documentation per California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines, Section 15061(b)(3) 
because it will not have a significant effect on the environment [Development Application No. 
2023-00037]. 
Item No. 28 Discussion.  MOTION: JD/NR ROLL CALL VOTE: 7-0.  Motion carried. 

29. Approve minutes of the City Council meeting of October 17, 2023. 

BUSINESS CALENDAR: 

30. Receive a presentation on the Orange County Office of Campaign Finance and Ethics 
Commission [Informational Item]. 
Discussion. Informational item; no action taken.  

5:30 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING: 8:45 p.m.   

31. Public hearing to consider the proposed vacation/abandonment of a segment of Orange Avenue 
lying west of Brookhurst Street and directly adjacent to Lot 2 of Tract No. 19192 and approve the 
Purchase and Sale Agreement for the sale of excess right-of-way to OrangeAveM 2024 LLC. 

RESOLUTION NO.  2024-045  A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF ANAHEIM vacating a segment of Orange Avenue lying west of Brookhurst Street and directly 
adjacent to Lot 2 of Tract No. 19192 (Abandonment No. ABA 2023-00414).  

Approve the Purchase and Sale Agreement with OrangeAveM 2024 LLC, in the amount of  
$85,000, for the sale of excess right-of-way; authorize the Public Works Director to execute the 
Agreement; authorize the Public Works Director, or designee, to execute the agreement and all 
necessary documents, including escrow documents required to close escrow; authorize the 
Mayor to execute the Quitclaim Deed; authorize the City Clerk to hold the recordation of the 
Resolution and Quitclaim Deed until authorized to record. 
Item No. 31 Discussion. Mayor Aitken opened the public hearing at 8:48 p.m. One (1) in-



 
 

 13 May 21, 2024 

person speaker; No electronic public comments submitted. Mayor Aitken closed the public 
hearing at 8:54 p.m. MOTION: NM/JD ROLL CALL VOTE: 7-0.  Motion carried. 

REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION ACTIONS:  None 

PUBLIC COMMENTS (non-agenda items):  None 
(opened only if any remaining non-agenda speakers were not called to speak during the first Public 
Comment period) 
 

COUNCIL AGENDA SETTING: 

Council Member Leon requested recognition for the Orange County Greek Food Festival and organizers.  

Council Member Rubalcava requested recognition for the Anaheim High School Wrestling Team coach 
for being selected Wrestling Coach of the Year.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Kurtz requested to add enforcement and education for both landlords and tenants to the 
discussion regarding eviction policies, a presentation regarding how the City is going to address illegal 
fireworks on the 4th of July, an update regarding e-Discovery for public records requests, and recognition 
for the Bharat Patel family for 50 years of service in the resort area.  

ADJOURNMENT: 9:02 p.m. in memory of Espiridion “Speed” Castillo, Marie Santangelo, and Jon 
Urbanchek.  

Next regular City Council meeting is scheduled for June 11, 2024. 

 
All agenda items and reports are available for review in the City Clerk’s Office and 
www.anaheim.net/councilagendas, and the Central Library.  Any writings or documents provided to a 
majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda (other than writings legally exempt from 
public disclosure) will be available at the Office of the City Clerk, located at 200 S. Anaheim Blvd., 2nd 
Floor, Anaheim, CA 92805 during regular business hours and by contacting the office by phone, 714-
765-5166, or email to cityclerk@anaheim.net. 
 
If requested, the agenda and backup materials will be made available in appropriate alternative formats 
to persons with a disability, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 
U.S.C. Sec. 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. 
 
Any person who requires a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or 
services, in order to participate in the public meeting may request such reasonable modification, 
accommodation, aid, or service by contacting the City Clerk’s Office either in person at 200 South 
Anaheim Boulevard, Anaheim, California, by telephone at (714) 765-5166, or via email to 
cityclerk@anaheim.net, no later than 8:00 AM on the day of the scheduled meeting. 

 
TRANSLATION SERVICES:  Spanish interpreting services are provided at City Council meetings. 
Simultaneous Spanish interpretation is provided through the use of headsets and consecutive 
interpretation (Spanish-to-English) is also available to anyone addressing the Council by stating your 
request at the podium. The use of city provided interpreters is not required and persons are welcome to 
use their own interpreter. Because many dialects and regionalisms exist, the City cannot guarantee that 
interpreters will be able to interpret into a particular dialect or regionalism, and disclaims any liability 
alleged to arise from such services. For translation services in other languages, contact the City Clerk’s 
office no later than 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting. 

http://www.anaheim.net/councilagendas
mailto:cityclerk@anaheim.net
mailto:cityclerk@anaheim.net


 
 

 14 May 21, 2024 

 
 
VIEW CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS LIVE AND ARCHIVED:  Anaheim City Council meeting videos can 
be viewed live on the City’s website at www.anaheim.net/councilvideos. 
 

 
 

 
POSTING STATEMENT:  On May 17, 2024, a true and correct copy of this agenda (revised) was posted 
on the kiosk outside City Hall, 200 S. Anaheim Blvd., Anaheim, CA. Internet Access to City Council, 
Agency, and Authority agendas and related material is available prior to meetings at www.anaheim.net.  

http://www.anaheim.net/councilvideos
http://www.anaheim.net/




































































































































































Orange Countywide Oversight Board 

Date: 9/17/2024 Agenda Item No. 10 

From: Staff to the Orange Countywide Oversight Board 

Subject: Contract for Legal Services with Bobko Law APC 

Recommended Action: 

Authorize and direct Board Chairman to sign agreement with Bobko Law APC and direct staff to 

terminate agreement with Aleshire & Wynder, LLP 

Health and Safety Code §34179(j) specifies that the Auditor-Controller’s office is to provide staff support 

to the Oversight Board, and as such, when the Board was being formed in 2018, then-Auditor-Controller 

Eric Woolery authorized a request for proposal (RFP) for legal counsel for the Oversight Board. 

Ring Bender LLP won the RFP on the basis of a proposal submitted by Partner Patrick “Kit” Bobko and 

commenced services on January 10, 2019, with Mr. Bobko serving as Counsel to the Oversight Board.  The 

initial term of the contract was 2 years (January 10, 2019-January 9, 2021) with a 1-year renewal option 

(January 10, 2021-January 9, 2022).  The Auditor-Controller’s office exercised that renewal option. 

Upon the expiration of that contract, the Auditor-Controller commenced a new 2-year contract (January 10, 

2022-January 9, 2024) with a 1-year renewal option (January 10, 2024-January 9, 2025).  At its July 23, 

2024, meeting, the Oversight Board directed the termination of the Auditor-Controller’s contract with Ring 

Bender for legal services for the Oversight Board.  At that same meeting, the Oversight Board approved its 

own contract for legal services with Aleshire & Wynder, LLP for a term concluding December 31, 2028. 

Subsequently, on August 1, 2024, Mr. Bobko transitioned from Aleshire & Wynder to Bobko Law. 

Health and Safety Code §34179(o) specifies that the Oversight Board may contract with any public or 

private entity for additional support of its functions. 

Staff recommends that the Oversight Board approve a contract with Bobko Law APC for legal services, 

commencing August 1, 2024, and concluding December 31, 2028.  The provisions of the proposed contract 

with Bobko Law are consistent with the provisions of the contract with Aleshire & Wynder. 

It is also recommended that the Oversight Board direct staff, including Mr. Bobko, to determine the 

appropriate steps to terminate the contract with Aleshire & Wynder while ensuring sufficient time to 

smoothly transition the Oversight Board’s legal services from Aleshire & Wynder to Bobko Law.  Ring 

Bender’s final invoices were paid through June 2024, Aleshire & Wynder will receive payment for the 

month of July 2024, and Bobko Law will begin receiving payment from August 2024.  In no month did 

more than one law firm receive payment for providing legal services to the Oversight Board. 

In the Auditor-Controller’s contract with Ring Bender, the Oversight Board’s contract with Aleshire & 

Wynder, and the proposed Oversight Board contract with Bobko Law, the terms specify that any of the 

firm’s attorneys, paralegals, and staff may assist in representing the Oversight Board, but that Mr. Bobko 

shall be the attorney assigned to represent the Countywide Oversight Board as its general counsel. 

As with the Auditor-Controller’s contract with Ring Bender and the Oversight Board’s contract with 

Aleshire & Wynder, the proposed Oversight Board contract with Bobko Law authorizes the hiring of 

consultants and other outside experts at the Board’s expense.  As with the Oversight Board’s contract with 

Aleshire & Wynder, the proposed contract authorizes Bobko Law to bill the Board for litigation costs and 

travel costs incurred. 



 

 

At any time, if the Oversight Board wishes to terminate the contract, it may do so without cause, subject to 

reasonable notice.  Similarly, Bobko Law may terminate the contract without cause, subject to reasonable 

notice. 

 

Attachment 

• Proposed Agreement Between the Orange Countywide Oversight Board and Bobko Law APC 



 

09999.0019/742522.1 FG  
23 Corporate Plaza Dr., Ste. 150 | Newport Beach, CA 92660 

September 4, 2024 

VIA E-MAIL 
 
Orange Countywide Oversight Board 
Attn: Kathy Tavoularis 
Office of the Auditor-Controller 
1770 North Broadway 
Santa Ana, California 92706 
E-mail: Kathy.Tavoularis@ac.ocgov.com 
 

 

Re: Engagement for Legal Services  
 
Chairman Probolsky and Honorable Members of the Board: 

This letter agreement (“Agreement”) is written to set out and confirm the retention of 
Bobko Law APC (the “Firm”) to provide the Orange Countywide Oversight Board with legal 
representation (“Client” or “you”) related to the matters identified herein.  

In this regard, please know that California Business and Professions Code § 6148 requires 
a written fee contract between attorneys and their clients to set forth the scope of the legal services 
which the attorneys have been retained to perform, and the fees which the attorneys will charge to 
perform those services.   

1. Scope of Services 

The Firm will provide legal assistance to the Client related to its obligations to comply with 
directing and dissolution of Orange County Successor Agencies and the disposition of their assets 
as required by the Dissolution Act. The Firm will advise the Board on its obligations under the 
Brown Act, assist with the conduct of its public meetings, preparation of Staff reports and meeting 
agendas, and provide other opinions and assistance as the Client may require. The Firm will 
interact with various State and local agencies in accomplishing the Board’s tasks and goals. 

If necessary, the Firm will defend the Board in litigation, or initiate litigation on its behalf. 



 

__________________ 
September 4, 2024 
Page 2 
 

 

 

 

2. Attorneys Providing Services 

While any or all of the Firm’s attorneys, paralegals and staff are available to assist in 
Client’s representation, the attorneys assigned to the Client’s representation shall continue to be 
Patrick K. Bobko. The services of other attorneys and paralegals in the Firm also may be used as 
is necessary and appropriate as the undersigned determines to provide the Client with the most 
effective legal service. 

3. Compensation, Costs, and Expenses 

The rates for services provided to Client shall be as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto 
and made a part hereof.  These rates may be reviewed and adjusted by an addendum or amendment 
to this Agreement, approved by the Firm and the Client. 

The Firm also might incur various costs and expenses in performing legal services under 
this Agreement. Client agrees to pay for those costs and expenses in addition to the hourly fees.  
Expenses will be reimbursed at the cost thereof in accordance with the billing and reimbursement 
practices set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and by this reference incorporated herein. 

The Firm’s fees are charged on an hourly basis and are billed monthly with payment due 
thirty (30) days after the date of the bill. Client agrees to pay for all hourly services when billed 
on a monthly basis.  The Firm shall be entitled to include interest at the rate of one percent (1%) 
per month on the outstanding balances when an amount is outstanding for more than thirty (30) 
days after the billing date.   

4. Retainer 

The Firm has not requested a retainer in connection with the representation of Client.   

5. Prohibition of Subcontracting or Assignment 

The Firm shall not contract with any other person or entity to perform the services required 
hereunder without Client’s prior approval, nor shall any interest herein be transferred, assigned or 
conveyed without Client’s approval.  

6. Termination 

Both the Firm and the Client shall have the right to terminate this engagement at any time, 
subject to reasonable notice.  The Client has the right to terminate our representation at any time. 
The Firm has the same right, subject to our obligation to provide the Client with reasonable notice 
to arrange alternative representation in the event that it determines to terminate this relationship 
due to non-payment of fees, lack of necessary communication and cooperation on the project, or 
for other reasons. In either circumstance, the Firm agrees to assist you in securing new counsel to 



 

__________________ 
September 4, 2024 
Page 3 
 

 

 

 

represent it as quickly as possible and to cooperate fully in the substitution of the new counsel as 
counsel of record in any litigation in which it may be involved. If the Client elects to terminate the 
firm, Bobko Law APC will be paid all fees and costs incurred prior to the termination within 30 
days after delivery of a final bill for services. 

7. Disputes 

We rarely have fee disputes with clients. Nevertheless, should any dispute arise concerning 
the services provided to you or the statements forwarded to you, as well as any alleged claims for 
legal malpractice, breach of fiduciary duty, breach of contract or other claim against the Firm for 
any alleged inadequacy of such services, the dispute will be settled by arbitration. The arbitration 
shall be heard in through the offices of the Orange County Bar Association pursuant to its rules 
regarding the arbitration of disputes over fees or costs. A copy of the Orange County Bar 
Association’s current rules regarding arbitration of such disputes is available at: 
https://bit.ly/3wjz6Z9 (www.OCBar.org). The arbitrators may establish such additional rules for 
the conduct of the arbitration as they may choose, except that there shall be no discovery, and any 
proceedings conducted shall be private and confidential and shall not be disclosed to the public by 
either the arbitrators or the parties to the arbitration. The award of the arbitrators must be by a 
majority vote and shall be final and binding, not subject to challenge by either party in any court 
of law. Each party shall bear its own costs of the arbitration and shall pay one-half of the costs of 
the proceeding. 

This binding arbitration is expressly in lieu of any right by either Client or Firm to a jury 
trial to determine the amount and validity of any claimed fees or disputes with said fees. The Client 
understands and expressly waives the rights to a jury trial.  

You are urged to discuss the advisability of arbitration with your independent counsel or 
any of your other advisors and to ask any questions which you may have. Your execution and 
delivery of the engagement letter will confirm that you have either obtained independent legal 
advice with respect to the binding arbitration clause, or you have decided to enter into this fee 
engagement without seeking such advice. 

8. Insurance 

In accordance with California Business and Professions Code, the Firm hereby informs 
Client that it maintains errors and omissions insurance coverage in an amount applicable to the 
services to be rendered. 

 

 

 

https://bit.ly/3wjz6Z9


 

__________________ 
September 4, 2024 
Page 4 
 

 

 

 

9. Conflicts 

The Firm is not aware of any conflict of interest in this representation. Client agrees to 
inform the Firm of any conflicts which may arise after execution of this Agreement which Client 
believes would affect the representation of Client. 

The Firm may have current or future clients which may have interests adverse to Client or 
Client’s related entities, and the Firm reserves the right to represent such clients in matters not 
connected to the representation described herein.  If a potential conflict of interest arises in the 
Firm’s representation of two clients, if such conflict is only speculative or minor, the Firm may 
seek waivers from each client with regards to such representation.   

10. Integration 

By signing below, Client acknowledges that no oral representations, statements, or 
inducements, apart from this written agreement, have been made.  If any portion of this Agreement 
is declared invalid by a court, the remainder shall continue in full force and effect.  

11. Execution and Authority 

This Agreement may be executed in counterparts and by electronic signature.  In executing 
this Agreement, you warrant that (i) Client is a duly organized and existing entity, (ii) you are duly 
authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of the Client, (iii) by so executing this 
Agreement, the Client is formally bound to the provisions of this Agreement, and (iv) the entering 
into this Agreement does not violate any provision of any other Agreement to which the Client is 
bound.  This Agreement supersedes any other agreement between the Firm and the Client. 

12. Holding of Retainer and Other Amounts in Trust – IOLTA Notice 

Please be advised that any funds that you may deposit in a trust account with the firm will 
be held in an account established at a financial institution selected by the firm.  Unless you make 
special arrangements in advance with the firm, all interest or dividends earned (net of service 
charges or fees, if any) will be paid to the State Bar of California to be used for providing legal 
assistance to indigent persons pursuant to the California Business and Professions Code.   

13. Communication Representatives, Electronic Communications, and Cloud-based 
Storage Systems 

We may communicate with you and others via email and such emails can be intercepted 
read, disclosed, or otherwise used or communicated by an unintended third party. We cannot 
guarantee or warrant that emails from us will not be improperly delivered or read by parties other 
than the addressee, possibly resulting in a waiver of the attorney-client privilege. We specifically 
disclaim any liability or responsibility whatsoever for such interception or unintentional disclosure 



 

__________________ 
September 4, 2024 
Page 5 
 

 

 

 

and you agree we shall have no liability for any loss or damage to any person or entity resulting 
from the use of email transmissions. 

If the Client has information that is particularly sensitive under environmental, securities, 
corporate law, or otherwise, then please notify us promptly of that sensitive type of information. 
The Firm will then undertake to take additional steps such as sending password protected emails 
or documents to you to further limit the potential interception of such electronic communications. 

The Firm uses a cloud-based system maintained by a third-party vendor for all 
electronically stored information. This vendor has provided to the Firm with assurances that the 
cloud-based computer storage system is maintained under security standards acceptable to the 
industry. 

Nonetheless, the Client understands and agrees that some or all of its electronic data may 
be stored in a cloud-based system. Again, if you have special concerns about your electronic data 
being stored, please notify us and we will work with you to have such data encrypted or otherwise 
secured with additional protections. 

14. Additional Items  

 Our legal relationship and the terms of this agreement will be governed by the substantive 
laws of the State of California. 
 

You also agree that our legal advice and opinions are solely for the benefit of the Client in 
relation to this matter. Any opinion provided to the Client cannot be relied on by any third party 
without the specific agreement of the Firm. The Client is prohibited from assigning claims to third 
parties. 
 

In order to begin work on this matter, the enclosed duplicate original of this letter must be 
signed and returned. You may send us an executed copy signifying your agreement via PDF in an 
email addressed to: Patrick@BobkoLaw.com.  
 

Bobko Law APC is passionate about the law and our clients. Each client and each  
matter is very important to us. We are looking forward to working on this matter with you.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:Patrick@BobkoLaw.com


 

__________________ 
September 4, 2024 
Page 6 
 

 

 

 

We appreciate your confidence in selecting Bobko Law APC as legal counsel and we look 
forward to working with you.   
 Very truly yours, 

 
BOBKO LAW APC 
 
 
 
Patrick K. Bobko 
Attorney 

 
 

I HAVE RECEIVED THE ORIGINAL OF THIS LETTER AGREEMENT AND 
UNDERSTAND THE FOREGOING TERMS AND CONDITIONS AND AGREE TO THEM.  I 
HAVE THE AUTHORITY TO SIGN ON BEHALF OF AND BIND CLIENT.   

 

Dated:  _________, 2024 By:    
Brian Probolsky 
Chairman, Orange County Oversight Board 

  



 

__________________ 
September 4, 2024 
Page 7 
 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

LEGAL FEES AND BILLING AND REIMBURSEMENT OF COSTS 

The Firm will provide legal services to the Client at a fee of $10,000 per month, starting on 
August 1, 2024, and continuing until December 31, 2028. The total amount the Client will pay the 
Firm for General Counsel services is $120,000 for each year from 2025 through 2028. The total 
amount of the fees for General Counsel services shall not exceed $530,000. 

Separately, the Firm shall bill its time for litigation matters on an hourly basis. The “blended” 
rate for attorney litigation services is $395 per hour. Paralegals will bill their time at $185 per hour. 

Costs and expenses are separately billed to the client and include fees fixed by law or assessed 
by public agencies, litigation costs including deposition, reporter fees, and transcript fees, long 
distance telephone calls, messenger and other delivery fees, postage, photocopying (charge of twenty-
five cents ($.25) per page) and other reproduction costs, staff overtime when necessitated and 
authorized by the client, and computer-assisted research fees when authorized by the client, all based 
on the actual and reasonable cost (mileage, reproduction and other costs are periodically adjusted in 
accordance with the Firm’s actual costs). 

Travel costs including mileage (current IRS rate), parking, airfare, lodging, meals, and 
incidentals are charged at actual costs.  Travel time at the rates set forth above may also be charged 
in connection with such proceedings.  In addition, you will be responsible for paying the fees of 
consultants and other outside experts who are retained after consultation with the client. 

 
The monthly billing statements for fees and costs shall indicate the basis of the fees, 

including a detailed and auditable breakdown of the hours worked, the billable rates charged, and 
description of the work performed.  All bills are expected to be paid within thirty (30) days of the 
date of the billing statement.  

 


	Agenda 2024-9-17
	1. Call to Order
	2. Pledge of Allegiance

	Minutes - Oversight Board 2024-7-23
	MASTER Item 4 Election of Officers
	Item 4 1 Cover Sheet - Election of Officers
	Item 4 2 Election of Officers Resolution

	MASTER Item 5 2025 Meeting Schedule
	Item 5 1 Cover Sheet - Meeting Schedule 2025
	Item 5 2 Meeting Schedule Resolution 2025

	MASTER Item 6 Costa Mesa
	Item 6 1 OB staff report re final reso to formally dissolve Successor Agency
	Item 6 2 OB reso to formally dissolve Successor Agency
	Section 1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into the Resolution by this reference.
	Section 2. The Countywide Oversight Board hereby finds, determines and verifies that, with respect to the Successor Agency, all of the Successor Agency’s obligations have been retired or paid off, all outstanding litigation has been resolved, and all ...
	Section 3. The Successor Agency is hereby dissolved.
	Section 4. The Clerk of the Countywide Oversight Board is hereby directed to send copies of this Resolution to the City of Costa Mesa, the County Auditor-Controller, the State Controller’s Office, and the DOF by electronic means and in a manner of eac...
	Section 5. The approval of this Resolution does not commit the Countywide Oversight Board to any action that may have a significant effect on the environment. As a result, such action does not constitute a project subject to the requirements of the Ca...
	Section 6. If any provision of this Resolution or the application of any such provision to any person or circumstance is held valid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of this Resolution that can be given effect without ...
	Section 7. Pursuant to HSC Section 34187(f), this Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption.
	Section 8. The Clerk of the Countywide Oversight Board shall certify to the adoption of this Resolution.
	The foregoing was passed and adopted by the following vote of the Orange Countywide Oversight Board on the 17th day of September 2024.

	Item 6 3 RESO 2024-08 - Dissolve Successor Agency
	Item 6 4 OC Oversight Board Letter - Signed
	Item 6 5 Costa Mesa OB 24-022 Initial Dissolution APPROVED (2)
	Item 6 6 2024.08.16 Attorney Letter
	Item 6 7 BOE Letter

	MASTER Item 7 Irvine
	Item 7 1 OB staff report re approval of final Irvine SA dissolution 2024.09.17
	Item 7 2 OB reso final approval of Irvine Successor Agency dissolution 2024.09.17
	Item 7 3 SA Reso
	Item 7 4 Irvine OB 24-023 Initial Dissolution APPROVED
	Item 7 5 Litigation Attorney Letter
	Item 7 6 COI Notice of Dissolution to BOE
	Item 7 7 CHECK 522663

	MASTER Item 8a Anaheim
	Item 8a 1 Anaheim Successor Agency_Staff Report - Anaheim Amended ROPS (1)
	Item 8a 2 Anaheim Amended - ROPS RESO (1)
	Item 8a 3 Attachment 2 (Amended ROPS FY 24-25B)
	Summary
	Detail

	Item 8a 4 Attachment 3 (Tetra Tech BAS Scope of Work)

	MASTER Item 9a Anaheim
	Item 9a 1 Anaheim Successor Agency_Staff Report - ROPS LIne Item No. _KOP Sublease 70 (9.10.24)
	Item 9a 2 Anaheim Successor Agency_Resolution - ROPS LIne Item No. _KOP Sublease 70 (9.10.24)
	Item 9a 3 Attachment 3 (License-Right-of-Entry Agreement) (2)
	Item 9a 4 Attachment 3 (License-Right-of-Entry Agreement) (1)

	MASTER Item 10 Contract for Legal Services
	Item 9 1 Staff Report Contract with General Counsel
	Item 9 2 Oversight Board - Retainer Ltr




